COUNCIL WORK SESSION
CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
AUGUST 15, 2023 AT 8:00 AM
3608 HWY 246 (NEW CITY HALL) & VIA TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM)

AGENDA

1. Call to Order
2. Adoption of Agenda
3. Discuss 2022 Audit, Joely Mixon, MMB&T

4. Discuss appointment of Lynn Menard as Sky Valley Country Club representative to
the Sky Valley Marketing Committee

5. Discuss proposed STR (Short-term Rental) Ordinance

6. Discuss proposed Fee Ordinance Amendment

7. Discuss proposed Trash Ordinance Amendment
8. Discuss purchase of one (1) 2023 ford Explorer Interceptor police car
9. Adjournment

You may join the meeting at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j /81804907456

Mdividuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or }Jarrici}mte n this
meeting, or who have questions regaru(ing the accessiﬁi(it}/ qf the meeting or the facifities are requirea( to call 706-746-2204

promptly to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
Of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia

Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informagin of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia (the

“City") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related fbtes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed, in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aII nfaterlal respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the businéss-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia &8 of December 31, 2022, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows theceof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the General Fund for the year then ended in accarddm;e Wlth a’eﬁau nting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America. Ly .
Basis for Opinions VN l

We conducted our audit in accordanee wlth aﬂdlttng «Standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicabléto, f“nanciar audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the Urrite;i’ ‘States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Respms;bilmes for. the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be mdepender_lt.ef the City, and tolmeet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to prewde a basls for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management far tbe Fmancml Statements

Management is responsible for the preparatxon and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is



higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate ghe overall presentation of the financial
statements. h

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events; considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continfte as a going e@ncern for a reasonable period of
time. P 3 3o

We are required to communicate with those charged wifﬁ-?;gg_ygg‘,ﬁiance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit. L N

Required Supplementary Information A T W

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United'-‘gﬁétes of America require that the Schedule of Changes in
the City’s Net Pension Liability and Relagéd Rati@s on page 36, the Schedule of City Contributions on page 37, and
the notes to the required supplementary. informégjga on page 38, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the resp@nsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the GoV@ramental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting foffplacing thee basi@financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied cerfain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s régp@nses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of thé basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has chosen to omit Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds, and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds, as listed in the table of



contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the Schedule of Expenditures of Special
Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds, and the Schedule of Expenditures of Transportation Special Purpose
Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds are the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the
Schedule of Expenditures of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds, and the Schedule of Expenditures
of Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Proceeds are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued or report dated August 15, 2023 on our
consideration of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia’s internal control avef'F'néjacia! reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contractsyand granhagreemens and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our g&sting of mterndl,sontral over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not tq, gfov:de ah opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That B@ort is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in consfﬂ’&mrlg the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance. 1.-{ ,

Mixon, Mixon, Brown & Tench, CPAs _ _.;sl i
Cornelia, Georgia o Sy
August 15, 2023 b






CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Activities Activities Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,878,315 $ 1,489,112 $ 3,367,427
Receivables, net

Accounts . 46,703 46.703

Taxes 732,446 - 732,446
Due From Other Governments 49,887 - 49,887

Internal Balances
Prepaid ltems
Capital Assets:

Land, Improvements, and Construction in Progress 2,222 328,961
Other Capital Assets, net of Depreciation 2,490,680 4,374,722
Total Assets 4,028,717 8,900,146
Deferred Outflows of Resources y N
Pension Related Items & 54,294 16,218 70,512
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES r 1 é923.723 4,044,935 $ 8,970,658
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES ; i
Liabilities
Accounts Payable . 56,176 $ 171,454 $ 227,630
Accrued Liabilities . - -
Unearned Property Tax Revenue e, 1.012,475 - 1,012,475
Unearned Grant Revenue - 33,918 - 33,918
Customer Deposits Payable 12,950 12,950
Compensated Absences: ' 3
Due Within One Year V' 4 15,203 6,040 21,243
Due Beyond One Year * 16,786 4,346 21,132

Capital Leases:
Due Within One Year A, W 7,613 - 7,613
Due Beyond One Year i “u R . .

Notes Payable: 217 .
Due Within One Year b N . 106,523 106,523

Due Beyond One Year Y . 960,992 960,992
Net Pension Liability, Due Beyond Dne\'ear 98,892 29,539 128,431

Total Liabilities ; 1,241,063 1,291,844 2,532,907

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension Related Items 63,272 18,900 82,172
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,304,335 1,310,744 2,615,079
NET POSITION
Net Invested in Capital Assets 2,203,168 1,425,387 3,628,555
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 441,226 - 441,226
Grants 1,477 - 1.477
Tourism 59,314 . 59.314
Unrestricted Net Position 916,203 1,308,804 2,225,007
Total Net Position 3,621,388 2,734,191 6,355,579

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
NET POSITION $ 4,925,723 $ 4,044,935 $ 8,970,658

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
4
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Major Governmental Funds

SPLOST TSPLOST

Capital Capital Nonmajor Total

Projects Projects Governmental Governmental

General Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,386,282 $ 78.118 $ 313221 $ 100,694 3 1,878,315
Receivables, net 732.446 - . . 732,446
Intergovernmental Receivables ' 49,887 49,887
Due From Other Funds . .
Prepaid Items - - - - .
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,118,728 s 78118 § 363108 3 100,694 $ 2,660,648
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 16,273 $ $ 39,903 $ 56.176
Accrued Liabilities . L -
Due to Other Funds - -
Unearned Property Tax Revenue 1,012,475 1,012,475
Unearned Grant Revenue 33918 . 33,918
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,062,666 39,903 1,102.569
FUND BALANCES
Non-Spendable:

Prepaid Items
Restricted for: - .

Capital Projects 363,108 . 441,226

Grant Purposes " 1,477 1,477

Tourism 59.314 59,314
Unassigned Reported in:

General Fund - . 1,056,062
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 363,108 60.791 1,558,079
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 363,108 $ 100,694
Amounts reported for governments

Capital assets used in governmen nut financial resources, and therefore, are not reported

in the funds. N ' 2.210,781

Long-term liabilities are not due é%ahlu in ghe current penaod, and therefore, are

not reported in the funds: "'-t\ -

Compensated Absences N (31,989)
Capital Leases ’ (7,613)
Net Pension Liability (98,892)

The deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the

City's pension plan are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available

financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Deferred Qutflows of Resources 54,294
Deferred Inflows of Resources (63.272)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 3,621,388

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6



REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Intangble and Transfer
Franchise
Beer and Wine
Insurance Premiums
Business Taxes
Hotel/Motel Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Event Admission Fees
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General Government
Palice and Courts
Fire
Public Works/Streets
Parks
Promotions & Tourism
Economic Development

Housing & Development

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVE

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES A
Proceeds From Sale of Assets

Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Major Governmental Funds

SPLOST TSPLOST Nonmajor Total
Capital Capital Gover tal Gover al
General Fund Projects Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
$ 1,027,426 $ . s s LY 1.027 426
36.489 36,489
56,480 56,480
1,294 1,294
39,333 39,333
1,150 . 1.150
- 99,756 99,756
29.489 . 29,489
175,836 50974 648,153
43,267 43,267
1.650 . 1,650
1.475 135 1,755
26,483 . 26,483
1.440,372 150.865 2,012,725
429,893 444,922
408,719 443,876
- 97.251
100,000 739,800
39,903 64,156
. 15,461
22,962
7.261
* 721
139,903 1.836.410
(57.644) 363.108 10,962 176,315
45,047 . 45,047
= (45,047) {45,047)

45,047 {45,047) .
(95.064) (57.644) 363,108 (34,085) 176.315
1,151,126 135,762 94,876 1,381.764
$ 1,056,062 S 78,118 S 363,108 S 60.791 $ 1,558.079

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.

Capital OQutlay

Depreciation Expense

Long-term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, bu_t

issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Rqayment"' :
of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but thefpepayment "

reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. ThlS i, !ﬁt’ amount by
which debt proceeds exceeds principal payments. p

Proceeds from Capital Leases
Principal Payments on Capital Leases

In the Statement of Activities, operating expenses are measureﬂ ky I:hg ﬁnbmmmcurred
during the year. However, compensated absences; _;aiw.)mclud jﬁ the governmental
funds only to the extent that they require the exeﬂﬁﬁfuﬁ&?{ current financial resources.

N 4 1 L i

r 4 o T

. Tl v >

Change in Compensated Absences ™ % .-._.__.' T
h & b s

Governmental funds report pensiops @mhutioﬁsg 'as expendltures However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of, Egnsmn beneﬁm earnéd, net of employee contributions
is reported as pension expensed Tfns is the amowRt by w -lCh cost of benefits earned, net
of employee contributions exceed‘e&pensmn contributions.

Cost of Benefits Earned, net oftontnbuuém

Pension Contributions

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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176,315
$ 616,876
(119,780) 497,096
7,261 7,261
(928)

(7.185)
33,898 26,713
706,457



REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Intangible and Transfer
Franchise
Beer and Wine
Insurance Premium
Business Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Event Admission Fees
Investment Earnings
Other Revenues
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government
Police and Courts
Fire
Public Works/Streets
Parks
Promotions & Tourism
Economic Development
Housing & Development
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES GVER

EXPENDITURES

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Transfers In
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Budget
Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$ 1,033,430 s 1,033,430 $ 1,027,426 $ (6,004)
17,000 17,000 36,489 19,489
53,200 53,200 56,480 3,280
800 800 1,294 494
20,000 20,000 39,333 19,333
700 700 1,150 450
28,610 28,610 29,489 879
70,974 #0974 175,836 104,862
30,000 A00. 43,267 13,267
- o 1,650
1,520, 1,520 1,475 (45)
y 6,660% 26,483 19,823
R 1,262,894 1,440,372 175,828
Yy
M 444,309 . 436,545 429,893 6,653
@9sd64 ) 403228 408,719 (5.491)
A 7251 97,251 97.251 :
. "L 874150 372,042 573.962 (201,920}
- 750 750 : 750
" 4 1 1, 22,600 24,253 24,253
& Pisois 15,461 15,461
N S .y 22953 22,962 22,962
_ 7.261 7.261 7,261
721 721 721 .
v 1,380,474 1,380,474 1,580,483 (200,009)
(117,580) (117,580) (140,111) (24,181)
80,580 80,580 . (80,580)
37,000 37,000 45,047 8,047
117.580 117,580 45,047 (72,533)
(95,064) (95,064)
744,305 745,905 1,151,126 280.291
$ - $ $  [95064) _§ (95,064)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, net
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Items
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:

Land and Improvement
Depreciable Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related ltems -
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES &

~

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES]

.

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES :
Accounts Payable T W
Compensated Absences &y U Wl
Due to Other Funds y Y
Customer Deposits Paybie S S’
Capital Leases Payable b 0 -
Notes Payable o W
TOTAL CURRENT LIABTLITIES
NONCURRENT LIABIEITIES
Compensated Absences: )

Capital Leases

Notes Payable

Net Pension Liability

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted for Capital Projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND
NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water & Sanitation

1,489,112
46,703

1,535.815

2,222
2.490.680

2,492,902

4,028,717

16.218

16.218

4,044,935

171,454
6,040

12,950

106,523

296.967

4,346

960,992
29,539

994,877

1.291.844

18,900

18,900

1,425,387

1,308,804

2,734,191

4.044.935




CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water & Sanitation

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Fees $ 505,146
Sanitation Fees 217,547
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 722,693
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water 357.816
Sanitation 224,480
Depreciation 163,397
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES b, 745,693
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) B (23.000)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) - 4
Intergovernmental Revenue , ¥ 4 -
Interest and Investment Revenue = 1,381
Miscellaneous Revenue (Expenses) '_}:;_- e -
Interest Expense -y (15.241)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES) AT, (13.860)

P L)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS A (36.860)
Transfers In 4
Transfers Out -
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (36,860)
NET POSITION - BEG]HN_!NG 2,771,051
NET POSITION - ENDING i $ 2,734,191

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sanitation Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers $ 712,176
Payments to Suppliers (308,151)
Payments to or on Behalf of Employees (283,977)
NET CASH PROVIDED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES 120,048

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Transfers From Other Funds

Transfers to Other Funds

Loans to Other Funds

Loans from Other Funds

NET CASH PROVIDED FOR NON-CAPITAL FINANCING 4
ACTIVITIES & B

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In From Other Funds

Proceeds from Notes Payable -
(105,287)

Principal Payments on Note Payables

Purchases of Capital Assets L N (25,296)

Interest Paid A ¥ (15.241)

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED g

FINANCING ACTIVITIES = ! (145,824)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING Acmﬁimss

Investments Redeemed 4 : -

Interest Earned . L 1,381

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING Aé‘i:m!'las 1,381

NET INCREASE (DECMSE] lN mﬂANﬂG&SH

EQUIVALENTS £ (24,395)
| |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVABENTS - BEGINNING 1,513,507

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS® ENDING $ 1,489,112

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ (23,000)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation Expense 163,397
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Receivables, net (6,710)
Due from Other Funds
Prepaid Expenses 19,058
Deferred Qutflows for Pension Items (618)
Accounts Payables (34,533)
Compensated Absences 8,161
Customer Deposit Payables 1,655
Net Pension Liability 3,782
Deferred Inflows for Pension Items (11,144)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 120,048

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2022
Municipal Court Fund

ASSETS
Cash $ 6,522
TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,522
LIABILITIES
Due to Others $ -
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION
Restricted:

individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments 6,522
TOTAL NET POSITION 6,522
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 6,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
13



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
CUSTODIAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Municipal Court Fund

ADDITIONS

Fines and Forfeitures $ 30,957
Interest 9
TOTAL ADDITIONS 30,966
DEDUCTIONS

Payments to Other Governments 28,445
Other Custodial Disbursements

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
14



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of
the City are described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Sky Valley, Georgia (the “City”) was incorporated, under the laws of the State of Georgia, in
1986 and operates under an elected Mayor-Council form of government. The City provides such
services as police protection, fire services, economic development seryi€es, parks and recreation
amenities, planning and building inspection, municipal court servigés, public works, water and sewer
services, sanitation services, and general and administrative sepﬁté§i-

As required by accounting principles generally accepted, u;,tﬁe United States afAmenca the financial
statements of the reporting entity include those of the Gﬁ;y (th&gmmary government) organizations for
which the primary government is considered to be ﬁnanczallyaccountable and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their re!atmnshig with tTiQ prlmary government are such that
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s ﬁnaﬂfcial sﬁmmentsto be misleading or incomplete.

For financial reporting purposes, maanemgnt has aam:dered all potential component units. The
decision whether to include a pote.mﬁal compnnent uﬁt in the reporting entity was made by applying
the criteria set forth in generally amte@a&mm principles (GAAP). The City has no component
units. .
GASB 14 defines the foﬁji}_]ation ofa"ﬁ!gjmarj'(:'-government as its separately elected governing body; one
that is elected by the cit'i"zép,_s_lin a general population election. The primary government consists of all of
the organizations that make Wp,its. legal entity. All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies,
departments and offices that arenot legally separate are, for financial reporting purposes, part of the
primary government. The primary government is also financially accountable for legally separate
organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of the organizations governing body and either
imposes its will on the organization or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

The City has no relationships with legally separate organizations that are required to be included in the
reporting entity for financial statement purposes. However, fire protection services are provided by an
independently organized volunteer group. The City supports this group by paying a quarterly fee for
their services.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e,, the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Government-wide financial
statements do not provide information by fund, but distinguish between the City’s governmental
activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. The statement of net position will include non-
current assets and non-current liabilities. In addition, the government-wide statement of activities
reflects depreciation expense on the City’s capital assets.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the diregfexpenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those hat are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) chagges to'gustomers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or prmleges providad by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restrir,;ed to meeting the @perational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxé§ and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenuesyPhe City does not allocate indirect
expenses to functions in the statement of activiti€s,, :

Fund Financial Statements \ V 4

Separate financial statements are pg:awded ("ﬂr E'O\r'er'lsnnental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and ma;orindiwdual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements., s

The City reports the foll'a_,\;?mg major"g;;)vel;hfnental funds:

The General Fund IS ﬂle Cmy?s primary operating fund. It is used to account for resources
traditionally associated wrth the City, which are not required legally or by sound financial
management to be accounted for in an another fund.

The SPLOST (Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax) Fund is used to account for the
proceeds of a sales tax levied in Rabun County, Georgia, which will be used by the City for the
exclusive purpose of capital outlay projects in the voter approved referendum.

The TSPLOST (Transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax) Fund is used to
account for the proceeds of a sales tax levied in Rabun County, Georgia, which will be used by
the City for the exclusive purpose of capital outlay transportation projects in the voter approved
referendum.

The City aggregates other nonmajor governmental funds in a single column in the fund financial
statements.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Water and Sanitation Fund accounts for the operation of the water utility system and the
activities associated with the collection of residential and commercial garbage. Activity is
rendered on a user charge basis and the fund includes all revenues from sources applicable to
the system’s operations and all expenses of the operation.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Custodial Fund is used to account for assets held by the City’s Municipal Court until they can be
disbursed to other parties.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
GASB Statements No 34 requnres that ﬁnancnal statements be accompamed by a narrative mtroductlon

analysis” (“MD&A"). This analysis is similar to analysis the pﬁvate sectorpzpwdes in their annual
reports. An MD&A is not included in this report. =

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, ANB F!NANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reporfelinsmg the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are th& pco;mety @nd fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned afid expenses ‘are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows,, Eropertyffaxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied.
Other taxes are recognized predommateinhen the underlymg transaction occurs. Grants and similar
items are recognized as reveniue.as saan as all ehglblllty requirements imposed by the provider have
been met. 4

Governmental fund finaneial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accruabbasis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Reventies are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the
current period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, claims, and judgements are recorded only when payments are due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, business taxes, charges for services, and interest associated with the
current year are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues in
the current year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by the City.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange
Transactions,” the corresponding assets (receivables) in non-exchange transactions are recognized in
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

the period in which the underlying exchange occurs, when an enforceable legal claim has arisen, when
all eligibility requirements have been met, or when resources are received, depending on the revenue
source.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidancg-é’f the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following siibsequent private-sector guidance
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject t@this same limitation. The government
has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector gundancg,,'

Amounts reported as program revenue include 1) char‘gES to cuﬁtomers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and coiffibutions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources aﬂe‘feported as'.@neral revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes 4

4

Ny .
Proprietary funds distinguish operati;ég; f‘éﬁnues 5};‘& expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally Fe?ult from prowding services and producing and delivering goods in
connection w1th a proprietary mn&‘s";grmé}:&a? engoing operations. The pnncnpal operatmg revenues of
of the enterprise funds ;_;;g]nde tfie_gests h_ft}_}ese goods and services, admlmstratlve expenses, and
depreciation on capitalﬁé_sets‘ All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenseg_,‘

D. BUDGETS

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds. The budgets for the proprietary funds are for
management control purposes and are not required to be reported. Budgets are adopted on a modified
accrual basis, which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for governmental funds,
except the capital projects funds, which adopt project-length budgets. All appropriations lapse at year
end. Encumbrance accounting - under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation - is not
employed by the City.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

E. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
certificates of deposit with original maturities of 3 months or less from the date of acquisition. For
purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes both of these categories.

Georgia statutes authorize the City to invest in the following: (1) obligations of Georgia or any other
state; (2) obligations of the United States; (3) obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United
States government or one of its agencies; (4) obligations of any corporation of the United States
government; (5) prime bankers’ acceptances; (6) the State of Georgia local government investment pool;
(7) repurchase agreements; and (8) obligations of any other political subdivisions of the State of
Georgia. Any investment or deposit in excess of the federal depository insured amounts must be
collateralized by an equivalent amount of state or U.S. obligations. Forj:'mrposes of the statement of cash
flows, all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less are considered to be
cash equivalents.

Investments in nonparticipating interest-earning investgnq’i‘i‘t' contracts, cert’l‘ﬁeates of deposit, are
recorded at cost. The remaining investments are recor&i@ﬂ_at f_aél_r-i"falue. Increases or decreases in the
fair value during the year are recognized as a component'éf@félrest income.

F. RECEIVABLES

All receivables are reported at their gress vah:e and Where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncoliectible. Estlmatecg unbilled revenues from the enterprise funds are

recognized at the end of each ﬁscalygar baseﬁ mithg»amount of service provided prior to year-end.
G. INTERFUND RECEIVA__EI‘ES AﬂBPA\’"ﬁBLES

Activity between funds thagis representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the year are referred tolas either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other
outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

H. INVENTORY

The City's policy is to expense parts as they are purchased; therefore, no inventory is recorded.

I. PREPAID ITEMS

Certain payments to vendors for services that will benefit future accounting periods are recorded as

prepaid items in both government-wide and governmental fund financial statements. These items are
accounted for using the consumption method. Prepaid items reported by governmental funds are also
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

equally offset by fund balance classified as nonspendable, which indicates they do not constitute
“available, spendable financial resources” even though they are a component of net current assets.

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, culverts, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 34 required the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective
with the year ended December 31, 2003. Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe
(other than related to utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assets are among the largest
asset classes of the City. The City reported general infrastructure assats 'placed into service after
January 1, 2003. ‘

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initia_l,@hdividual o5t of $5,000 and an estimated
useful life in excess of two years. Depreciation is recordedfon general capitﬁ!ll@ssets on a government-
wide basis. Capital outlays of the Proprietary Fund are recordedas capital assets and depreciation is
recorded on both the fund basis and the government-wide &aﬁi’s Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or gn,nsgructed ﬁme case of donations, the government

values these capital assets at the estimated fair vajye oﬁ:he Q;em ‘at'the date of its donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and :;qpaﬁ'sjihat do:not add to the value of the assets or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capltahzaﬂ but crhprged to aperatlons when incurred. Upon sale or
retirement of capital assets, the coﬁ:and rdﬁiaé Mcgmulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated
from the respective account&andany Yﬁﬁltmg gain or loss is included in the results of operation.

Major outlays for capltal assets and lmgrovements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the constﬂ.tctlon phaﬂg of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the assets constructed. No mte.res; Was capitalized during 2022.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Asset Years
Buildings and Improvements 5to 30
Machinery and equipment Sto 10
Infrastructure 10 to 30
Vehicles 5

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave
benefits up to a maximum of 280 hours. Accumulated vacation pay that is expected to be liquidated with
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the
government fund that will pay it. Amounts of accumulated vacation pay that are not expected to be
liquidated with expendable financial resources are reported as long-term liabilities.

L. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

The City collects deposits from new customers for water services. The deposits are held until the City
discontinues services to the customer and, therefore, are reported as a liability in both the fund and
government-wide financial statements.

M. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements and the propriety fund ithe fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabiiifies in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or propriety fuid statément of net position.

Proprietary fund type loans payable are reported as liabdit?é's at their outstaiding value. In the fund
financial statements, governmental fund types recogmze the fagéamount of the debt issued as other
financing sources and the repayment of debt as debt servme prendltures Loan issuance costs are

reported as expenses when incurred. -

.,
y

N. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES/DERERRED INFEOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statemeng®f net pqﬁition mﬂl.l-.;sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separatg--ﬂna__neiél“'sﬁa_tgméht element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption oif.gaggosiﬁrt_i)_q'that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outﬂow of resources‘féfgiéﬁééjexﬁ'e’hditu re) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for
described more fully be]ow

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one type of deferred inflows of
resources which arise under the accrual basis of accounting that relates to pensions and is described
below.

The City has deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the recording of changes in its net
pension liability. Certain changes in the net position liability are recognized as pension expense over
time instead of being recognized in the year of occurrence. Experience gains or losses result from
periodic studies by the City’s actuary which adjust the net pension liability for actual experience for
certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the assumed dates of retirement of
plan members. These experience gains or losses are recorded as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining lives
of plan members. Changes in actuarial assumption which adjust the net pension liability are also
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

recorded as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and are amortized into
pension expense over the expected remaining service lives of plan members. The difference between
projected investment return on pension investments and actual returns on those investments is also
deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five year period. Additionally, any contributions
made by the City to the pension plan before year end but subsequent to the measurement date of the
City’s net pension liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources.

0. FUND EQUITY AND NET POSITION

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as fund balance. Fund equity
for all other reporting is classified as net position.

Fund Balance

In accordance with GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable - includes amounts that cannot be spentﬁééause they are'(éﬁfher (a) not spendable in
form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted temash llkaeﬂnventorles and prepaid items) or are
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained mtact. 'Fhe City has not reported any amounts that
are legally or contractually required to be mamsﬁin_ed mtact

..\

Restricted - includes amounts restricted when thﬁ'eﬁ;ve Ilmﬁauons imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopga’é ’by the Cnty Q’r through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, laws of other governments, or by qdnstltuﬁapal provision or enabling legislation.
Committed - includes amounts thah:an mﬂybeusad for specific purposes. Committed fund balance is
reported pursuant to resolutioas, passedby the City Council, the City’s highest level of decision making
authority, which include, ﬁjelanguage ‘committed for the purpose of’. Commitments may be modified
or rescinded only through adoption Qfa subsequent resolution, which shall refer to the original
resolution by its number. A;esoluthll committing amounts must be adopted prior to the end of the
fiscal year; however, the amaﬁ_n; tolbe committed may be determined within 120 days of fiscal year end.

Assigned - includes amounts that the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not meet the
definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Amounts may be assigned by the City Manager,
under the authorization of the City Council, through a written memorandum. Amounts appropriated to
eliminate a projected deficit in the subsequent fiscal year's budget shall constitute assignments and are
documented by adoption of the City’s annual operating budget. Equity amounts reported in special
revenue funds or capital project funds not otherwise classified as non-spendable, restricted, or
committed shall constitute assignments of fund balance.

Unassigned - includes amounts that do not fall into one of the above four categories. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The General Fund is the only fund
that should report this category of fund balance.
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For the purposes of fund balance classification, the City considers restricted amounts spent first when
an expenditure is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available.
Additionally, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted
classifications of fund balance can be used, then committed amounts are spent first, followed by
assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources in reporting which utilizes the economic resources measurement
focus. Net position reported as net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reportedas restricted when there are
limitations imposed on the use of assets either through enabling Iegis{atmn adopted by the City Council
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors. ar’]aws gor regulations of other
governments. All other amounts reported under net positiog’ are reporteﬂas unrestricted. When both
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for usg itis the Clty s po*icy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are’ needed

%

P. MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

..‘e \ : ‘“f
The preparation of the financial statements in con{@rmﬁ‘? wffh*accountmg principles generally accepted
in the United States of America reqmres»managemen‘& to make estimates and assumptions that affect

certain reported amounts and d:sngures &ptual regults could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANGE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information w
The City follows these procedires ifi establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements: N
1. Prior to January 1, the department heads submit to the City Council a proposed operating
budget for each department for the fiscal year commencing january 1. The operating budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
2. Public hearings are conducted at City Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to December 31, the City Council approves the budget.
4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within departments within any
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department must be
approved by the City Council.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level in the General
Fund. The enterprise fund adopts a budget at the fund level for management purposes. During the year,
the supplementary budget appropriations made were not material; however, the City did have
expenditures in excess of the appropriated budget for its General Government department that totaled
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$207,411 in which budget appropriations were not made. The General Government expenditures in
excess were due to a paving projects that were funded with grants and the prior year reserve.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of investments. The City has not formally adopted an investment policy to address interest
rate risk.

Credit Risk - The City's policy is to adhere to the State statutes as it relates to credit risk for
investments. State statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or other
states; obligations issued by the U.S. Government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S.
Government or by a government agency of the United States; obligatiofi§ of any corporation of the U.S.
Government; prime banker’s acceptances; the local government iny@stment pool established by state
law; repurchase agreements; and obligations of other political sﬁh’aiﬁﬁops of the State of Georgia.
Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk8r deposits is the Fik that, in the event of the
failure of a depository financial institution, a governmeﬁﬁ-ﬁyill r;_gt-"be able to recover deposits or will not
be able to recover securities that are in the possession of agi@iitside party. State statutes require all
deposits and investments (other than federal am’] state govemgnent instruments) to be collateralized by
depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. govatsnmerxt or. bonﬂs of public authorities, counties, or
municipalities. The State of Georgia requires fi finangial fAstitttions to pledge securities at 110% of a local
government’s deposits. At December 31 '2'@%2 all off,he deposits of the City were fully collateralized in
accordance with state statutes. _&" R
Concentration of Credit Rlsk The‘Eﬂ;y;has no formal policy on the amount the City may invest in any
one issuer. oy

Foreign Currency Risk -—I""[jh_e City hq;;,'no investments denominated in a foreign currency.
NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

The City receives property tax assessments from Rabun County, Georgia. Property taxes are levied on
property values assessed as of January 1. Tax bills were levied on all real and personal property and
mailed to taxpayers in October, and were due and payable on or before January 1 of the following year.
After that date, both penalty and interest are accrued until the taxes are collected. Property taxes attach
an enforceable lien on property as of May 1 of the following year. Property taxes are recorded as
receivables and deferred revenues when assessed.
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Receivables as of December 31, 2022 for the City’s individual major funds and non-major funds in the
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Water &
General TSPLOST Sanitation
Receivables:
Taxes $ 732,446 $ - $
Accounts - - 71,691
Intergovernmental - 49,887 -
Less allowance for
Uncollectible = - (24,988)
Net Total Receivables $ 732,446 3 49,887 $ 46,703

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANFERS R h

During normal operations, the City will occasionally pay&: goadi and services or transfer monies
between the general and enterprise fund (water and samtéﬁ‘ﬁng All interfund balances are the result
of a time lag between dates that (1) interfund gaﬁﬂsg@d serqusare provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recnrdedjln the aﬂ@o.gntihc system, and (3) payments between
funds are made. As of December 31, 2022, there w&repé interfund receivables and/or payables
between the general fund and the wa@@'an&cﬁamtaﬁw fund.

«.-.-

Interfund transfers are used to 1) nhgg ungv”mres fmm the fund that statute or budget requires them to
the fund that statute or budgggwaresz:b expend them, and 2) use restricted revenues collected to
finance various programaccounted:for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
Transfers are eliminatéd in the gover ent wrde financial statements if the interfund transfer is within

the governmental fund gro&tp or busme’ss type group. As of December 31, 2022, there were no interfund
transfers between the generanand’ﬁnd the water and sanitation fund.
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in Progress
Land and Improvements

Total assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles

Total assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment
Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total assets, being depreciated et

‘4,'.' v
Governmental Activities

SN

Capital Assets, net T,

Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
$ . $ 75000 $ 75,000
251,739 - 251,739
251,739 75,000 . 326,739
550,835 - 4 - 550.835
8-

1,161,553 459422 4 - 1,620975
280,858 47297 @ "1!13.,204) 315,951
233,677 35‘;5 (17‘32 ) 251,834

2,226,923 ‘976 . (29204)” 2,739,595

€ &
L .In r‘—y
1\-

(23362 rh-ﬂ_»"g_seu‘ir - (252.236)
(159,287) W - (203510)
uﬂ,on] /fzz 68 12,204 (257,554)

;'/ 124 . (34,259) 17,000 {142,253)

[76 ] !5119 780) 29,204 (855,553)

-/
461,946 422,096 - 1,884,042
- M
" Y LAY
Y
2
$ 1,713,685 $ 497,096 § - $ 2210781
==
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Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases Ending Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land and Improvements $ 2,222 $ - $ - $ 2,222
Total assets, not being depreciated 2,222 - - 2,222
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings & Improvments 17,500 - - 17,500

Machinery & Equipment 218,795 25,296 - 244,091

Vehicles 85,560 - - 85,560

Infrastructure 5,190,138 - 5,190,138
Total assets, being depreciated 5511993 25,296 - 5,537,289
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings & Improvments (17,500) - ; (17,500)

Machinery & Equipment (159,474) (25.409) 0 7 (184,883)

Vehicles (72.091) (48987 - (76.989)

Infrastructure (2,634,147) (133690) - (2,767,237)
Total accumulated depreciation (2,883,212) (163.397) -9 (3,046,609)

E o
Total assets, being depreciated, net 2,628,781 (138u01) 2,490,680
Business-Type Activities -w .
Capital Assets, net $ 2,631,003 % § (138201)  $ . $ 2492902
o
r 4 - f
4 ) T

. = Cid -
¢ f |
LA

y 4

Depreciation expense was chargeefiffi funct,iéjmjproéﬁjéms of the primary government as follows:
. A '“’":"_-_-;

Y

Governmental Activities: 47,

: h W
General Government : \""\I - $ 9,444
Public Safety: ) &

Police and Courts - & 24,214
Public Works/Streets 75,977
Parks : 5,195
Housing & Development 4,950
Total Depreciatdon Expense,

Governmental Activities $ 119,780

Business-type Activities:
Water $ 147,990
Sanitation 15,407
Total Depreciation Expense,

Business-type Activities $ 163,397
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2022, was as follows:

Beginning Due Within One
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 31,061 $ 928 $ $ 31989 $ 15,203
Capital Leases 14874 - (7.261) 7,613 7613
Net Pension Liability 86,229 12,663 98,892
Governmental Activities
Long-term Liabilities $ 132164 $ 13,591 $ (7,261) $ 138,494 $ 22816
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 2,225 $ 8.161 $ S $ 10,386 $ 6,040
Notes Payable 1,172,802 - (405287) 1.067515 106,523
Net Pension Liability 25,757 3,778 _‘ g5, N 29,535
Business-Type Activities A _'-:_:
Long-term Liabilides $ 1,200,784 $ 11 9& $ [105 287) 'i{ 1,107,436 3 112,563
& r
\.-:i- Al

The General Fund typically liquidates the capitallease obllg"agzﬂns The compensated absence and net
pension hablllty obhgatlons are llquldated by tﬁﬁ Gé@fﬁl Funcf@h,d the Water/Sanitation Fund. The

Governmental Activities

The City has entered into a lease ag‘m&_ né s1ess@€. The lease, obtained in 2019, is for financing the
acquisition of a patrol car apd Mpgrﬂgs in the original amount of $36,953 plus an additional $70
which the City paid. The. ,taa‘se agr@ameﬁ’é allﬁes as a capital lease for accounting purposes and
therefore, has been reeefded at the presen value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date
of inception. Amortizatioh, expense onthe capital lease is included in depreciation expense.

The assets acquired through this q‘_a_ﬁ{i'tal lease is as follows:

Less
Accumulated
Date Type Rate Amount Depreciation Total
8/23/2019 Vehicle 4.74% $ 37,023 $ (24065) % 12,958
Total $ 37,023 $ (24,065 % 12,958

The City’s balance of the capital lease payable outstanding as of December 31, 2022, is shown below:

Maturity Beginning Ending

Lease Interest Rate Dates Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Magnolia Bank 4.74% 3/1/2023 $ 14,874 S - $ (7,261) % 7,613
Total Capital Lease Payable $ 14,874 $ - $ (7,261) $ 7,613

The future annual requirements to amortize this capital lease obligation as of December 31, 2022 is as
follows:
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Year Ending December 31 Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 7,613 $ 369 $ 7,982
Total $ 7,613 $ 369 $ 7,982

Business-Type Activities
Note Payables

The City’s water and sanitation fund has two Georgia Environmental Finance Authority (GEFA) loans to
improve and renovate portions of the water system. Note payables outstanding as of December 31,
2022 are as follows:

Maturity Beginning Ending

Loan Interest Rate Dates Balance ‘Additions Reductions Balance
GEFA DW(09024 0.00% 12/1/2031 $ 646,240 L. N - $ (64.624) $ 581,616
GEFA DW10018 3.00% 1/1/2033 526,562 {40,663) 485,899
Total Notes Payable $ (105,287) $1,067,515

$ 1.17@"02 s

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the not'e{ﬁ_ra_lyébles are as follows:

\ [nteiese. 0 Total

Year Ending December 31 Principal Y
2023 106523 ) A#004p 120,527
2024 107,798 W12730 120,528
2025 ‘ ._;;szq,l't:& 1) 11416 120,527
2026 { 110464 110,063 120,527
2027 WL 5T - 8,669 120,528
2028-2032 . G113 20,900 538,013
2033 ’ 4 . U Y 12 4,659
Total $ }p_ﬁ?ﬁs $§ 77794 _$ 1,145.309

o

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City, as authorized by the City Council, has established a non-contributory defined benefit pension
plan (The City of Sky Valley Retirement Plan), covering substantially all of the City’s employees. The
City’s pension plan is administered through the Georgia Municipal Employee Benefit System (GMEBS),
an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia Municipal Association.
Contributions made by the City are commingled with contributions made by other members of GMEBS
for investment purposes. The City does not own any securities on its own. Investment income from the
securities is allocated on a pro rata basis. The Georgia Municipal Association issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for GMEBS.
That report may be obtained at www.gmanet.com or by writing to Georgia Municipal Association, Risk
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Management and Employee Benefit Services, 201 Pryor Street, NW, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 or by calling
(404)688-0472.

The City Council, in its role as Plan Sponsor, has the governing authority to establish and amend from
time to time, the benefits provided and the contribution rates of the City and its employees. The Plan
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. All employees, excluding elected officials, who work thirty hours or more
per week are eligible to participate in the Plan immediately upon hiring, but will not be vested until 5
years of service. Benefits are provided by the Plan whereby retirees receive 1.25% multiplied by the
average of the five highest years of regular earnings multiplied by the total credited years of service.
Death benefits are calculated using an actuarial reserve.

As of July 1, 2022, the date the most recent actuarial valuation, there were 37 participants consisting of
the following:

N S

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits y B
Terminated vested participants not yet receiving benefits 0 _ 15
Active employees - Vested &« &» 7
Active employees - Non-vested x -_f'/"'" 8
Total 2 ) 37
Funding Policy S 7 B

The plan is subject to minimum Functm@ stanﬁ)ards ciﬁ’s.he Georgia Public Retirement Systems Standards
law. The Board of Trustees of GMEBS has a(daptad, a I‘Ecommended actuarial funding policy for the plan
which meets state minimum reqmrenients and will accumulate sufficient funds to provide the benefits
under the plan. The Fundl%ﬂaﬁﬂy for bh& Plan, as adopted by the City Council, is to contribute an
amount equal to or greaﬁer than the al:tuanally recommended contribution rate. This rate is based on
the estimated amount ne,gessary to Fnance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the
year, with an additional ameunt to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to
contribute the difference betwée_q the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of plan
members, as determined by the City Council. For fiscal year 2022, the actuarially determined
contribution rate was 7.40% of covered payroll. City contributions to the Plan were $44,023 for the year
ended December 31, 2022. Employees of the City do not contribute to the plan. For fiscal year 2023,
based on July 1, 2022 actuarial valuation, the recommended contribution rate will be 7.34%.

Net Pension Liabili

At December 31, 2022, the City reported a liability of $128,427 for its net pension liability. The City’s
net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2022. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2022 with update procedures
performed by the actuary to roll forward to the total pension liability measured as of July 1, 2022.

The changes in the components of the net pension liability of the City for the year ended December 31,
2022 were as follows:

30



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

Balances at December 31, 2021 $ 886,696 $ 774,710 $ 111,986
Changes for the Year:

Service Cost 19416 = 19,416

Interest 65,417 - 65,417

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 30,357 - 30,357

Contributions - Employer . 55,425 (55,425)

Net Investment Income - 47,286 (47.286)

Benefit Payments (Including Refunds of Employee

Contributions) (38,208) (38,208) .

Adminstrative Expense . (3,966) 3,966

Other = & - -
Net Changes 76982 4 60,537 16.445
Balances at December 31, 2022 5 963678 U8, 835247 S 128,431

7Y : ‘{}‘b\
& 1
y 4 ©

Pension Expense and Deferred O ws of Resoureés and Déferred ws of Resourc lated
to Pensions A " 4

’r_ .

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the C:tylﬁﬁcdg@edpenﬂgn expense of $9,331. At December 31,
2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resotﬁ;ces@ha deférred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources: &= .f;‘ \'\
W '“ Deferred
Ay _""‘f' Outflows of Deferred Inflows
A Resources of Resources
Differences Between Ex;lected and&qmal Expel;!;nce $ 34,570 $ (5.184)
Changes of Assumptions 2,924 -
Net Difference Between Pmiected and Acfﬂﬂ Eamlrfg.s on
Pension Plan Investments - (76,988)
City Contributions Subsequent. ,m rhe Measurr.mcnt Date 33,018 -
Total " $ 70,512 $ (82,172)

City contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $33,018 are reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending December
31, 2022. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending December 31:
2023 $ 7,103
2024 (14,605)
2025 (39,244)
2026 2,068
Total $ (44.678)
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the March 31, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.25%
Salary Increases 3.00% - 8.50%, including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.375%, net of penion plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Sex-distinct Pri-2012 head-count weIghted mortality tables with rates
multiplied by 1.25. y

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation w__e:t‘;é baséd?'é;l__the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period January 1, 2015 through [@6'30, 2019.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan inﬁé}mjﬁr;ts was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected futuve;eal rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and 1nﬂ5§10‘ﬁ) mdeveldgpd for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term etﬁecte@ rate@Preturn by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset gdlnm-ton pe'l:memage and by adding expected inflation. The
dlfference between the resultmg rar.eand thé{'rate on’fﬂle ongomg basis is a margm for adverse devnatlon.

target asset allocation as of Ma_r;h 31, «3922 are summarued in the following table:

'. .\\ % \

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class e i Target Allocation Real Rate of Return*
Domestic Equity - 45% 6.55%
International Equity el 20% 7.30%

Global Fixed Income 5% 0.50%
Domestic Fixed Income 20% 0.40%
Real Estate 10% 3.65%
Cash 0%

Total 100%

* Rates shown are net of the 2.25% assumed rate of inflation

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.375%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that City contributions will be
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
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term expected rate of return of pension plan investments was applied to all of the projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.375%,
as well as what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate 1
percentage point lower (6.375%) and 1 percentage point higher (8.375%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.375%) (7.375%) (8.375%)
City's Net Pension Liability $ 259,875 $ 128,431 $ 19,311

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts.and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined affounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are'hased on the substantive plan in
effect as of July 1, 2022 and the current sharing pattern of_c-;iﬁs between é?ﬁ?]_pyer and employee.

The required schedule of changes in the City’s net pensmnhabnlffy and related ratios immediately
following the notes to the financial statements presents multiyear trend information about whether the
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing éﬁﬁgﬁ-:tuuﬁ_telati?é.go the total pension liability.

NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

1% Ay b
The City also provides retirement béengfifs for its employees through a deferred compensation, defined
contribution plan. The Plapwasueateﬁiaa accordance with the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section
457(b). The Planis adm[ﬂistered by the Gedrgia Municipal Association (GMA), an independent third
party and plan trustee, and is avallahle to all City employees immediately upon employment.
Participants may elect to make pre- t_a_xcontrxbutlons subject to the deferral limitations of the revenue
code. The City does not contribuité to the Plan.

As required by Section 457(b) of the IRC, plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
participants and their beneficiaries. Investments are managed by the trustee under one of the available
investment options, or a combination thereof. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Plan are not
included in the accompanying financial statements. During the year ending December 31, 2022, one
participating employee contributed $60 to the Plan.

NOTE 10 - JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the northeast Georgia area,
is a member of the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission (GMRC) and is required to pay annual dues
thereto. Membership in a GMRC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section
50-8-34, which provides for the organization structure of a regional commission. GMRC board
membership includes the chief elected official of each county and municipality of the area. OCGA 50-8-
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39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the GMRC.
Separate financial statements may be obtained from the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission, P.O.
Box 1720, Gainesville, Georgia 30503.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has joined together
with other municipalities in the state as part of the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency
Property and Liability Insurance Fund and the Georgia Municipal Association Group Self-Insurance
Workers Compensation Fund, a public entity risk pool currently operating as common risk management
and insurance programs for member local governments.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributi.@ifs’/and assessments as prescribed
by the pools to cooperate with the pool’s agents and attorneys o foﬁm loss reductlon procedures
descriptions issued, all mcxdents which could result in the: ﬁmds bemg requfsed to pay any claim of loss.
The City is also to allow the pool’s agents and attorneys#o. represe’nt the City in investigation, settlement
discussions, and all levels of litigation arising out ofany cTafm made against the City within the scope of
loss protection furnished by the funds. =

The funds are to defend and protect the members offhe funds agmnst liability or loss as prescribed in
the member government contract and in accordanqe wiﬁi tﬁe worker’s compensation law of Georgia.
The funds are to pay all cost taxed aga,ms%mﬁmberm any legal proceeding defended by the members,
all interest accruing after entry of‘wﬂgment and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or
defense. =T

Settled claims in the past Elitree (3} j&ars ’hvaVe not exceeded insurance coverage.

.1|
o

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENTMBILITIBQ

Litigation :
The City is involved in pending lawsuits in the normal course of the City’s business. Liability, if any,

which might result from these proceedings, would not, in the opinion of management and legal counsel,
have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the City.

Grant Contingencies

The City has received grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor
agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously reimbursed by
those agencies. Based upon prior experience, management of the City believes such disallowances, if
any, will not be significant.
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NOTE 13 - HOTEL/MOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX

The City imposes a hotel/motel tax on lodging facilities within the City. The tax is assessed at 5% and, in
accordance with 0.C.G.A. 48-13-51, the City is required to spend at least 40% of this amount for
promoting tourism, conventions, trade show and tourism product development. Revenues were
$99,756 for the year ended December 31, 2022. Of this amount, 40%, or $39,903, was used to promote
tourism.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

NOTE 1

Valuation Date

The actuarially determined contribution was determined as of July 1, 2022, with an interest adjustment to the fiscal
year. Contributuions in relations to this actuarially determined contribution will be reported for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2023

NOTE 2

Significant methods and assumptions used in calculating the actuarially determined calculations are as follows:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit o

Amortization Method Closed level dollar for req 8 unfunded liability

Remaining amortizati@n period¥aries for the bases, with a net

effective amnrllm@'l period of mmm
,rf

Remaining Amortization Period

;

Sum of amﬁal valu%aﬁmcgmmng of year and the cash flow

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments
Retirement Age

Mortality Rates

Sex-distinct Pri-2012 head-count weighted Healthy Retiree

- Mortality Table with rates multiplied by 1.25
Sex-distinct Pri-2012 head-count weighted Disabled Retirce
Disabled participants Mortality Table with rates multiplied by 1.25
Active participants, terminated
vested participants, and Sex-distinct  Pri-2012  head-count weighted Employee
deferred beneficiaries Mortality Table
Plan Termination Basis 1994 Group Annuity Reserving Unisex Table
NOTE 3

Changes in Benefits

There were no changes in benefit provisions in the last two fiscal years.

NOTE 4

Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions in the last two fiscal years.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Grant Funds
Hotel/Motel
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Total Governmental

ARPA - Grant Funds Hotel/Motel Funds
$ 1,477 $ 99,217 $ 100.694
$ 1.477 S 99,217 S 100,694
3 * $ 39,903 3 39,903
- 39,903 39.903
1,477 - 1,477
59314 59,314
59,314 60,791
99,217 $ 100.694

39




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMA]JOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Total Governmental

ARPA - Grant Funds Hotel/Motel Funds
REVENUES
Hotel/Motel Occupancy Taxes $ - $ 99,756 $ 99,756
Intergovernmental 50,974 - 50974
Interest 53 82 135
TOTAL REVENUES 51,027 99.838 150,865
EXPENDITURES
General Government . .
Public Works/Streets 100,000 - 100,000
Promotions & Tourism - 39,903 39,903
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100,000 39.903 139.903
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (48,973 59,935 10,962
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In (Out) (45.047) (45.047)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER (UNDER) L 4083
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 44,426 94.876
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 59.314 $ 60,791
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF

SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Estimated
Original Current Prior Years Total Percentage
Estimated Estimated Cumulative Current Year Cumulative of
Project Cost Cost Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Completion
RABUN COUNTY, GEORGIA SPLOST '19
Roads $ 240,000 $ 240,000 s 232,416 3 7611 § 240,027 100%
Equipment 100,000 100,000 - 35,157 35,157 35%
Buildings 50,000 50,000 25.695 15,000 40,695 81%
TOTAL RABUN COUNTY, GEORGIA SPLOST $ 390,000 $ 390,000 $ 258,111 3 57,768 $ 315,879
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX PROCEEDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Estimated
Original Current Prior Years Total Percentage
Estimated Estimated Cumulative Current Year Cumulative of
Project Cost Cost Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Completion
RABUN COUNTY, GEORGIA TSPLOST
Paving, Resurfacing and Construction of Roads $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000 $ $ 12,456 S 12,456 1%
Paving, Resurfacing and Renovation of Bridges/Culverts 300,000 300,000 23,400 23,400 804
Safety Improvements & Vehicles for Public Works 167,506 167,506 22,400 22.400 13%
TOTAL RABUN COUNTY, GEORGIA TSPLOST § 1,967,506 $ 1,967,506 3 5 58256 $ 58.256
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Independent Auditor’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And Other
Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards

Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and City Manager
Of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generaﬂy'ampted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained ingGovernmenfiduditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statem@nts of the govemmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remammg fund imformation of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia
(the “City™), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 and. the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic ﬁnancnal statements and have issued our report thereon dated
August 15, 2023. ; &

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportmg : ,

In planning and performing our audit of thé¥fifiancial mtements we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) a§"a basis for &&.‘tgmng audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expresmng oMF opinion§ion the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivefiessfof the €ity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of rhe Ctty s i‘rﬂ;ernal control.

A deficiency in internal congmf exists \Aﬂien the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normaligeurse of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, Br detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as items 2022-1 and 2022-2 that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and



accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Sky Valley, Georgia’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City’s response to the
findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
The City’s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Mixon, Mixon, Brown & Tench, CPAs
Cornelia, Georgia &
August 15, 2023 : by



CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Section [ - Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements

Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
Material Weaknesses Identified? X Yes No

Significant Deficiencies Identified not considered
Material Weaknesses? Yes X _ None Reported

|Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements ¥
[Noted? Yes 4 X No

Federal Award

There was not an audit of major federal programs for ﬁa‘eyeafended December 31,2022, due to the
total amount expended being less than $750, 000

N
L
L N

Section II - Financial StatementFmdmgsand Responses

4

Current Year Findings

N

Finding 2022-1 - Budgetary Expéndlturesmﬁxcess of Appropriations

Criteria: Georgia statute, Q.&Gi&jﬁf)-ﬁi{ss,_ prohibits governmental expenditures in excess of
appropriated budgets ats tﬂi‘é legal Iévél of eontrol.

Condition: For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City did not make the appropriate budget
amendments for two of the CFtijfs d.epartments Police and Courts expenditures were in excess of
$5,491 and Public Works/Streets were in excess of $201,920.

Cause: The City's expenditures were in excess of the appropriated budget for its General
Government department. Budget amendments are required to be approved by the City Council
when expenditures exceed the budgeted appropriations at the department level in the General
Fund.

Effects: The City was not compliant with 0.C.G.A. 36-81-3 as its expenditures for General
Government were in excess of appropriations that totaled $207,411.

Recommendation: We recommend that City management regularly review the budget for
compliance to ensure that expenditures are not in excess of appropriated budgets and in instances
where expenditures are greater than the appropriated budget, ensure that budget amendments are
approved by the City Council.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Auditee’s Response: We agree with the Auditor’s comments. In 2022, there were many projects
completed that were not originally budgeted for or the projects were budgeted for much lower
amounts. The City was able to secure grant funding opportunities which allowed the City to either
increase the scope of the project or complete the infrastructure projects much sooner than
anticipated. For corrective measures moving forward, the City will not only anticipate all of the
expenditures for projects but anticipate the revenue sources so that budget amendments can be
made in a timely manner.

Finding 2022-2 - Inadequate Monitoring and Oversight

Criteria: An effective internal control system includes establishing oversight and performing
monitoring activities of financial reporting systems to ensure accuracy and completeness.

Condition: Throughout 2022, capital outlay expenditures for the Gﬁﬁéral Fund were recorded
incorrectly causing the expenditures in Public Works/Streets dgpartment to be understated.

Cause: A review of the City’s financials, including the recorﬂ’ ing ofcapltai outiay transactions, were
not performed in an adequate manner. o ;

Effects: Expenditures in the Public Works/Streets depar’mre;nt were recorded incorrectly to an
asset account which resulted in expenditures béingundersta‘wd by $238,044, which also
contributed to expenditures for this depa rtmenﬁrhemgm excess of its budget.

Recommendation: We recommend r.baf the City eSﬁabllsh and practice monitoring and oversight
activities to included the timely rewew of fmancaal data to ensure transactions have been recorded

accurately. \ ¥ &

Auditee’s Response: Weagree wfth the Amiltor s comments. [n 2022, our part time financial
assistant instructed us t@ record several capltal outlay projects as projects in progress instead of
expenditures. Itis my undérstandmg ghat this is a common accounting practice but not in public
finance accounting. For correm\;e ineasures, we will ensure that all expenditures are recorded
correctly. ’

Status of Prior Year Audit Findings
Finding 2021-1 - Budgetary Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

Criteria: Georgia statute, 0.C.G.A. 36-81-3, prohibits governmental expenditures in excess of
appropriated budgets at the legal level of control.

Condition: For the year ended December 31, 2021, the City did not make the appropriate budget
amendments for one of the City’s departments.

Auditee’s Response/Status: Not Corrected. See current year financial audit finding 2022-1.
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CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Finding 2021-2 - Bank Reconciliations are not being performed in a timely manner.

Criteria: To ensure proper financial reporting and safeguarding of assets, transactions should be
reconciled in a timely manner.

Condition: Bank reconciliations for January - March were not performed in a timely manner.

Auditee’s Response/Status: Resolved.
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STATE OF GEORGIA ORDINANCE NO.
COUNTY OF RABUN

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS FOR SHORT-TERM RENTALS
WITHIN THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE AND TO PROVIDE SAFETY AND
OPERATIONAL STANDARDS, AND ADMINISTRATION, LICENSING, PENALTIES,
AND ENFORCEMENT

WHEREAS, the City of Sky Valley, Georgia is a municipality duly constituted and
existing pursuant to Georgia law;

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Georgia provides in Article IX, Section 2,
Paragraph 3 that the governing authority of the City may adopt reasonable Ordinances to protect
and improve public health, safety, and the welfare of the citizens of the City of Sky Valley; and

WHEREAS, the requirements contained in this ordinance are appropriate for short-term
rentals to provide for the regulation, taxation, and the safety of the occupants of short-term rentals
and to provide for the peace, safety and tranquility for the citizens of Sky Valley;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED by the Mayor and
Council of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia, by the lawful authority vested in them, that Section
41 is hereby added to the Code of Ordinances as the following:

SECTION 1:
Sec. 41-01- Purpose and intent.

(a) The purpose of this ordinance is to establish regulations for the use of rental dwelling units
as short-term rentals and to ensure collection and payment of required excise and occupational
tax fees. Short-term rental means a rental period of 30 days or less. It may also refer to a
property that is rented for such time periods.

(b) This ordinance is not intended to regulate hotels or inns. This ordinance is not limited to
boarding, lodging, or rooming houses, or units located within structures that are commercial
in nature.

Sec. 41-02- Applicability.

(2) It shall be unlawful for any owner of any property within the incorporated limits of the City
of Sky Valley to rent or operate a short-term rental of property contrary to the procedures and
regulations established in this ordinance, other provisions of Code, health department
requirement(s), requirement(s) of the City of Sky Valley for water, sewage, or sanitation, or
any other applicable state law or rule.

(b) The restrictions and obligations contained in this ordinance shall apply to short-term rentals
at all times during which real properties are marketed or used as short-term rentals.



Sec.

(a)

Sec.

(2)

(b)

41-03- Property owner(s)

Property owner(s). The owner(s) or owner’s agent shall ensure the short-term rental is used
in a manner that complies with all applicable codes, laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to
the use and occupancy of the short-term rental unit. The owner shall further ensure occupants
and/or guests of the rental do not create disturbances, engage in disorderly conduct or violate
any City Code, law or rule, or regulation pertaining to the use and occupancy of the subject
short-term rental unit.

41-04- Occupational license for short-term rental and transferability.

Required occupational license and short-term rental.

(1) It shall be unlawful for any owner, individual, business organization, or partnership
within the incorporated limits of the City of Sky Valley to rent or operate a short-term
rental unit, building, or structure without proper license or contrary to the procedures
and regulations established in this ordinance, other provisions of Code, or any applicable
state law.

(2) The owner or owner’s agent shall pay the required occupation license fee and shall
comply with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

(3) The owner shall be required to report and pay all excise fees monthly by the twentieth
(20™) day of the following month on each location, unit, area, space, room, building or
structure at the fee percentage approved by the city council as defined in O.C.G.A § 48-
13-51.

(4) No person, individual, or agency of a short-term rental shall rent, lease, or otherwise
allow the occupation of or otherwise exchange for compensation all or any portion of a
short-term rental without first obtaining an occupational license for each short-term
rental and providing for payment of excise fees with the city clerk.

(5) An occupational license for short-term rental application may be denied if the applicant
has had a prior short-term rental for the same location revoked within the previous twelve
(12) month period;

(6) An owner of a short-term rental unit shall submit an application for an occupational
license for short-term rental with the required information updated to the city on an
annual basis. The application shall be furnished on a form specified by the city,
accompanied by a non-refundable license fee as established by the city council. The
requirements of the application shall be set by the policy of the City Council.

(7) Any false or inaccurate information provided in the application may be grounds for
denial or revocation of the license, including denial of future licenses.

License fee(s)/renewal.

(1) The short-term rental license application shall be accompanied by an initial license
application fee as set by the City Council and be subject to an annual renewal fee as set
by the City Council;

(2) All licenses granted by this ordinance shall expire one year from the date of issuance.
Renewal applicants shall file a renewal application accompanied by the required fee with



the city clerk on or before the expiration date. If a short-term rental license expires due
to non-renewal by the expiration date, a new application and license shall be required.

(3) The short-term rental license is non-transferable, and should ownership of the rental
property change, a new license shall be required.

Sec. 41-05- Transferability of occupational license for short-term rental.

No short-term rental license issued under this ordinance shall be transferred, assigned, or used
by any other individual other than the owner for which it was assigned or upon any other location
than the one for which it was issued.

Sec. 41-06- Occupancy.

The number of overnight occupants at the short-term rental shall be subject to a maximum
occupancy as determined by the occupancy definition as listed International Codes, as cited in
Section 8-25 of the Sky Valley Code of Ordinances.

Exceeding the maximum occupancy shall be a serious violation of the life and safety
requirements of this ordinance and shall authorize the police department to remove all individuals
that exceed the maximum allowable occupants for the structure or unit. Violation of this section
can result in revocation of a short-term rental license.

Sec. 41-07- Life and safety minimum requirements.

The licensee shall comply with all fire and safety requirements as defined in city ordinances,
NFPA 101 the Life Safety Code and the requirements of the Georgia Safety Fire Commissioner as
defined in Chapter 120 and O.C.G.A § tit. 25 Ch. 12.

Sec. 41-08- Life and safety inspections.

All short-term rental units or locations shall be required to certify to the city the property
complies with all fire and safety requirements as defined in city ordinance, NFPA 101 the Life
Safety Code and the requirements of the Georgia Safety Fire Commissioner as defined in Chapter
120 and O.C.G.A § tit. 25 Ch. 12., prior to the issuance of any license.

The city reserves the right to inspect or authorize the inspection of the premises of any license
applicant or licensee for the purpose of determining the eligibility of an applicant for a license, the
eligibility of a license renewal, or to ensure the premises’ compliance with state minimum standard
building codes, pursuant to O.C.G.A § 8-2-26.

Sec. 41-09- Suspension or revocation of short-term rental license.

(a) Any short-term rental license issued under this ordinance for the operation of a short-term
rental shall be immediately revoked in the event the owner no longer owns the short-term
rental property.

(b) A short-term rental license shall be immediately suspended or revoked upon learning that an
applicant furnished fraudulent or untruthful information in the application for license or
omitted information required in the application for license or fails to pay all fees, taxes,
utilities (water-sewer), or other charges imposed under the provisions of this ordinance or city
codes.



(c) A short-term rental license shall be suspended for a violation of the fire or the life safety
requirements of this ordinance. Such violation shall be such that an unsafe condition exists
where a fundamental safety precaution or device defined in this ordinance or adopted codes
is rendered inoperable or does not exist.

(d) Other than for those reasons set forth in parts (a), (b), and (c) of this section; suspension,
revocation or forfeiture of a short-term license issued by the City of Sky Valley shall occur
only after notice and opportunity for a hearing before the city council pursuant to Sections 12
and 13.

Sec. 41-10- Violation of this ordinance.

Except when defined in this ordinance requiring an appearance before city council, penalty(s)
for violation of this ordinance shall be at the discretion of the municipal judge who possess the
authority to fix punishment in accordance with the city Charter, ordinances, and state law or by a
court of competent jurisdiction.

Sec. 41-11- Civil penalty.

The city council shall possess the authority to impose a civil penalty against any entity that is
licensed for short-term rentals which may include suspension or revocation of license, fine, and
forfeiture as determined for violations of this ordinance. Civil penalties shall not relieve the owner,
individual, business organization, or partnership from mitigating specified violations and may
include fines and penalties as may be prescribed by the municipal court or a court of competent
jurisdiction.

Sec. 41-12- Enforcement.

(a) Penalties, including notice of code violation or citation may be imposed and the short-term
rental license may be suspended or revoked in the manner provided in this subsection.

(b) Any complaints to or response by the City regarding a short-term rental shall result in a notice
of the complaint and shall be directed to the owner. Such notice may be made electronically
or in writing. The owner or owner’s agent is required to visit the short-rental location and
shall ensure that compliance is obtained within seven (7) days after verbal or written notice.
Depending on the severity of the complaint. upon request, the owner or owner’s agent shall
be required to immediately visit the short-term rental location to ensure compliance.

The short-term rental shall not be occupied by renters if the violation is safety related placing
occupants in an elevated risk hazard. Additionally, notice may be delivered by emergency
dispatch verbally to the owner, requiring the appropriate individual to respond to the short-
term rental location as may be required by police officer, law enforcement, fire department,
or the zoning administrator.

(c) The building inspector/code enforcement officer or city designee shall conduct an
investigation whenever there is a reason to believe that the owner is unsuccessful either by
failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this ordinance.
The investigation may include an inspection without limitation of the premises, review of
response and incident report(s), online searches, review of citations or notice(s), and interview



and documentation of community members affected by the event; all of which may constitute
evidence of a violation of this ordinance, Code, or state law.

Should the investigation support a finding that a violation occurred, the building
inspector/code enforcement officer or city designee shall issue written notice of the violation
and advance the accusation to the city council or municipal court as may be deemed
appropriate. The notice shall be served by certified mail or personally and shall specify all
pertinent facts (as deemed necessary by the building inspector/code enforcement officer or
city personnel) to set forth grounds for the imposition of penalties or for suspension or
revocation of the license.

Sec. 41-13- Hearing on denial, suspension or revocation.

Upon receipt of notice pursuant to Section 41-12 and setting forth a specific date, time, and
place of hearing; the owner may appear in person to present evidence either to deny, confirm, or
mitigate the accusation. A decision of the city council or municipal court may be appealed to the
Superior Court of Rabun County.

Sec. 41-14- Short-term Rental Monitoring Service

The city of Sky Valley may partner with a third-party- internet-based short-term rental
monitoring service or company, its affiliates, subsidiaries, and/or assignees to provide the City
with address identification and rental activity monitoring of short-term rental properties in the city.

Severability clause.

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance or the application
thereof to any person, individual, business organization, partnership, circumstance be held invalid
by a court of competent jurisdiction; such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this
ordinance. This ordinance is hereby declared severable.

Any modification of federal or state law or regulation which would affect a change in the
provisions of this ordinance is hereby incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof.

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall become effective upon the mayor affixing her signature below.



APPROVED:

HOLLIE STEIL, MAYOR JIM CURTIS, COUNCILOR

BILL OLIVER, COUNCILOR

TONY ALLRED, COUNCILOR

TIM DARRAH, COUNCILOR

BRUCE TURNER, COUNCILOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:
KAREN FLEMING DOUGLAS KIDD

CITY CLERK CITY ATTORNEY

First reading and introduction August , 2023

Second reading and adoption September , 2023



STATE OF GEORGIA ORDINANCE NO.

COUNTY OF RABUN

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PREVIOUS FEE SCHEDULE ORDINANCES, TO
ESTABLISH FEES FOR CITY SERVICES, PERMITS, INSPECTIONS &
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, TO PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION AND TO
REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES OR PORTIONS THEREOF IN CONFLICT HEREWITH.

Sec. 14-1. - Fee schedule established.

Fees and charges to be charged and collected by the city shall be as follows:

Miscellaneous Charges

Fax to receive & send | $0.450 per page

Notary $10.00 per notarized document.

”_$(-).-1-25 per cop; for8.5x 11 er—8§+4-4_
$0.250 per copy for 11 x 17

Copies $0.250 per color copy for 8.5 x 11 ex8.5%14
$0.759 per color copy for 11 x 17
-AEirc;s_s _labels - _$_1 .00 per page - - - -
= " Freeroadmap -
Maps of Sky Valley $_500 for 11 x 17 col(;su?div_isic_)n r_nap _ - _
-$15.6-() for 24 x 30 éolor éﬁl;difrision map
Laminatio_n - _ -$.2.00.;_)er page .

.Alcoholic Beverage License and Permit Fees

Distilled spirits, on-premises consumption  |$1,000.00



Distilled spirits, wholesale dealers $1,000.00
Distilled spirits, retail package '$1,000.00
Beer/wine, on-premises consumption :$100.00
Beer/wine, wholesale dealers $200.00
Beer/wine, retail package $200.00

Nonprofit permit to sell alcoholic beverages $25.00 or as otherwise authorized by the council

Insurers License Fees

Annual license fee upon each insurer doing business within the city $15.00
For each separate business location in excess of one not covered by
section 22-92, which is operating on behalf of such insurers within the $15.00

city

Insurers insuring certain risks at additional business locations. For each
separate business location not otherwise subject to a license fee hereunder
operated and maintained by a business organization which is engaged in
the business of lending money or transacting sales involving term
financing and in connection with such loans or sales offers, solicits or
takes application for insurance through a licensed agent of an insurer for

$10.00 per location
for the year 1996
and for each year
thereafter

insurance

State Law reference— License fees, O.C.G.A. §§ 3-4-48, 3-4-110, 3-5-42.

Tree Cutting Permits

$75100.00 for the first 1 to 5 trees;
$1520.00 for each tree over the first 5

Cutting and topping

xTrimming/pruning ’$25 .00, butpermtstitreqrired




Dead/diseased/hazardous

Signs; Sign Permits

Outdoor for sale signs

$25.00, but-permit-stilrequired

.$2550.00 each (must be ordered through the city)

Commercial signs/bilbeards $10058.00 plus $+2.00 per square foot
Water Ra_t_es” - _ - -
Usage
Per Additional
(Gallons) Base Charge 1,000
0—2,000 $39.50 -
2,001—4,999 o '$4450  $1000

Residential Usage  5,000—9,999 © $6450  $11.00

%" Meter Monthly - - _ |

Minimum Regardless 10,000—14,999 $119.50 $12.00

of _ .

Usage 15,000—19,999 $179.50 $13.00
20,000—24,999 $244.50 $14.00
25,000—34,999 $31450  $15.00
35,000—49,999 346450  $1600
50,000 +  8704.50 $17.00

Il.\/I-l_lltifamily and ]Ilaster Meter Size _ Base Charge Pé; zc;;i_i_t;onal



Commercial Monthly 1,000
Minimum Regardless | _
of Yo $45.25 $10.00
Usage

1" $69.00 $10.00

1.5" $126.50 $10.00

2" $241.50 $10.00

3 $471.50 $10.00

4n $586.50 $10.00

6" $701.50  $10.00

8"  $93150  $10.00

10 $1,161.50  $10.00

$403 0_.0_0_ i)éf_request during normal business hours_of 8AZM-4PM Mon-
Meter turn-on/off Fri
$200.00 per request for weekend, holiday, or after hours

Water service deposit  $+250.00 renter deposit

Penalties for late Non_;;ayment by the due date will be subject to a penalty of 10% per
payments month

Nonpayment for 60 days will subject service to termination.

Reconnection fee Reconnection fee is $75100.00 plus all minimum charges accrued while
disconnected

IWater connect fe_e %" line tap and meter“ _ - “$_Qé3,600.00 -
1" line tap and meter “$5,000.00
2". line tap and meter - "$10,000.(_)6____ -

$15,000.00

3" line tap and meter




Connections to distribution line
when not adjacent or parallel to
property line or undeveloped parts of
the city

Actual cost of materials and labor
to run line including pavement
repairs

Water connection and
rate for outside city 1.5 times the corresponding rate for inside city limits
limits

Relocation of existing $153.000.00
meter

Solid Waste Collection

m$23.00 per month curbside, recycling, and acce_ss fd
the city compactor and-basged-yard-waste-and-
hinni .

Garbage collection as defined by the trash ' §23 00 per month/per unit for multifamily units
ordinance—monthly minimum regardless | gharing a dumpster.

of usage
$30.00 per month for back door service or other

alternate location (requires statement of disability
by occupant)

_________ I\ | ,_ . —
Illegal use of compactor/illegal dumping
Local ordinance set by city judge

'$100.00 per hour and shall be billed in with-the fiest
15-minute increments and will be added to the

water and trash bill senth-included-in-garbagefee-

Removal or returning of refuse containers
by the city as defined in the trash $12.00 $30.00 per occurrence
ordinance

Chipping Yard debris removal as defined
by the trash ordinance

Rémoval of accumulated, loose, scattered, $42-00 $100.0(_) pe; hour and shall b;b_illed in 15-



or unbagged refuse or trash eentainers by minute increments and will be added to the water
the city as defined in the trash ordinance  and trash bill and/or a lien shall be applied to the
property for the cost of cleanup.

Delivery of wood chips $50025.00 per 3-yard truck load

Traffic

Personal transportation vehicle (PTV) registration $425.00 annual registration

Housing and development fees; Planning and zoning .épplications

Annexation ;'md map amenciments "$50_0.00
_R;-_zoning and ﬁlai;) éme_:nc_lments - N | _---$5(j-0.()_0_ |
Conditional use o 825000
Variance_ - .. | - - _$25_0.0_O

Land Development Review, Inspection and Permits

Concept plan '$500.00

Preﬁminary plat/site plan .$500.00 or $10.00-/”10t, whichever is gréater

Water li

aerime $750.00 or $15.00/1ot, whichever is greater
review/inspection
Road design $750.00 or_ $15.00/1ot, whichever is greater

review/inspection



NPDES permit fee for LIA

. $40.00 per each disturbed acre
(city)

NPDES permit fee for GA

| EPD

'$40.00 per each disturbed acre

|Land disturbance permit |$50.00 < 10 acres; $150.00 for 10 acres to 25 acres; $200.00 plus
Y P $5.00 for each acre over 25

Final plat $350.00 or $7.00/lot, whichever is greater

lSite/Plot Plan and Erosion and Sedimentation Control (For All Land Disturbance)

‘Soil erosion and sedimentation control ‘$100.00 for 1 acre or less, plus $50.00 per
'monitoring and enforcement for all land acre for each additional acre or portion

‘ disturbance thereof

|

Demolition

(Requires performance bond = to 135% of cost of demolition)

. 1%0.10 per square foot (bond required); sf to be determined from tax assessor's
Demolition . o s . . . .
\website unless building plans are made available or information not available

Preliminary Building Plan Review and Site Visits

(To be paid at the time of request and deducted from the price of the permit when application is
made)

|Plan review $0.00

Site visit $0.00




.Building Permits (Residential and Commercial)

‘Mechanical, electrical, and plumbing permits will require a separate permit to be pulled by
state-licensed and insured contractor. Roofing permits will require a separate permit to be pulled
'by insured contractor.

'$1.00 per squaré foot

. . or portion thereof
New construction and additions to heated square footage .

Feewavedtor
2005
Remodeling (50% or r;ore of structure) N $7150.00 N
Must be brought up to code
Remodeling ( 50% or less of structure) $75.00
_Un-Finished éreas (basemer;t;) _ _ $2150 OO_
Must be brought up to code when 50% or more is being replaced or ’
repaired
Unfinished areas (b;se;nents) $Tpe; square foot or
New construction portion thereof

New installation- Decks/railings/landings/stairs or Remodeling/replacing
$756.00
50% or more of structure that must be brought up to current code

Remodeling/repairing/replacing- $25.00
Decks/railings/landing/stairs 50% or less of
structure

Roofing Permits (Residential and Commercial)

New installation and replacement 50% or more of structure must be brought up to $75.00

current code



Repairs /replacement 50% or less of structure

.Mechanical Permits (Residential and Commercial)
:Mechanical (new or add-on)

Mechanical (repair or replace) no new lines or venting

Plumbing Permits (Residential and Commercial)

Plumbing (new or addu-b;lj_

Plumbing (repair or replace) no new lines or piping

Hot water heater change-out

Gas Permit (Residential and Co;nmercial)

Gas piping (new or ;ig-;)_ns)_

Gas piping (repair or replace) no new lines or piping

Electrical Permits (Residential and Commercial)

_E]ectrical (new or ;dd-ons) _

Electrical (repair or replace existing) no new lines or wiring

$25.00

$275.00

$25.00

$275.00

1$25.00

2500

~$275.00

$25.00

$275.00
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Other Miscellaneous Building Permits

Generator new or add on ehange-eut-

Door/window ehange (resize)

Jacuzzi/Hot tub ehange-out new

Hettub/swimming pool install
Cell tower

Application for exemption from state water efficiency requirements of
0.C.G.A. § 8-2-3 under the circumstances enumerated in O.C.G.A. § 8-
2-3(e), for plumbing fixtures for new construction and the repair or
renovation of an existing building

Wetlands Application Review

Filing fee to be used to retain expert consultants who will

$756.00
$250.00
$250.00
$150.00
'$24,500.00
$50.00 for the
inspection and

issuance of such
exemption

Up to the larger of $500.00 or

provide services pertaining to functional assessment, $100.00 per acre may be
mitigation, and wetland boundary determinations, as deemed  required to evaluate the
necessary by the building inspector. application

Retaining Walls

Retaining walls > 4 ft. from bottom of footing to top of wall-

Other poured concrete

Re-Inspection Fees, Penalties and Fines

$100.00

$50.00

Re-inspection fee—1st and 2nd -$25.00 1%, $50 2" Neo-charge
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Re-inspection fee—3 or more $5100.00 each
Penalty for starting work without a Permit fee will be doubled for first offense, $50.00
permit ‘minimum

Falsifying a permit or repeat violation ~ Violator will be cited and subject to a fine of re-mere-
for starting work without a permit than-$1,000-00-Local ordinance set by city judge

Short term rental — 30 days or less
An occupation or short term rental license is valid for one year from date of issue.

Occupation license $50.00

[nitial license application $250.00

Annual license renewal $250.00

Operating short term rental without a license  |[Local Ordinance set by City judge

(Ord. No. 91-4, § 5, 4-1-1991; Ord. No. 95-2, § I, 1-9-1995; Ord. No. 95-14, §§ 1, 2, 12-4-1995;
Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-15, 12-2-1996; Ord. No. 01-05, § VII(d), 6-29-2001; Ord. No. 01-08, 9-5-
2001; Ord. No. 13-02, § I, 7-15-2013; Ord. No. 13-04, § 1(21), 10-21-2013; Ord. No. 14-05, §
1(1200), 5-27-2014; Ord. No. 18-08, § I, 12-13-2018)

Sec. 14-02. — Effective date.
This ordinance shall take effect on October 1, 2023.
Sec. 14-03.- Conflicting Ordinances.

City ordinance 92-15, 94-4, & 92-25 and all other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed.

Sec. 14-04.- Severability clause.

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance or the application
thereof to any person, individual, business organization, partnership, circumstance be held
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction; such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this ordinance.

APPROVED:
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HOLLIE STEIL, MAYOR

ATTEST:

KAREN FLEMING

CITY CLERK

First reading and introduction August

Second reading and adoption September

, 2023

, 2023

JIM CURTIS, COUNCILOR

BILL OLIVER, COUNCILOR

TONY ALLRED, COUNCILOR

TIM DARRAH, COUNCILOR

BRUCE TURNER, COUNCILOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DOUGLAS KIDD

CITY ATTORNEY



STATE OF GEORGIA ORDINANCE NO.

COUNTY OF RABUN

Chapter 30 - SOLID WASTEY

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GA

SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND PREVIOUS SOLID WASTE ORDINANCES, TO
DEFINE TERMS AND PHRASES RELATING TO THE COLLECTION AND
DISPOSAL OF TRASH, WASTE AND GARBAGE; TO REGULATE THE
RECEPTACLES AND CONTAINERS FOR THE SAME; TO PROVIDE FOR THE
MANNER OF PREPARATION OF THE SAME FOR COLLECTION; TO PROVIDE
FOR THE MANNER OF COLLECTION OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL, TRASH
AND GARBAGE FROM COMMERCIAL ESTABLISHMENTS AND PLACES OF
RESIDENCE; TO PROHIBIT THE DEPOSIT OF TRASH, DEBRIS OR LITTER UPON
VACANT LOTS; TO PROHIBIT BURYING REFUSE, POLLUTING WATERS, OR
SPILLING TRASH, GARBAGE AND OTHER DEBRIS UPON CITY STREETS; TO
PROVIDE FOR KINDS OF COLLECTION SERVICE TO BE OFFERED, THE DAYS
OF COLLECTION AND A SCHEDULE OF CHARGES THEREFOR; TO PROVIDE
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION AND TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES OR
PORTIONS THEREOF IN CONFLICT HEREWITH.

The Council of the City of Sky Valley hereby ordains:
Footnotes:

e (1) -

State Law reference— Georgia Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Act, O.C.G.A. § 12-
8-20 et seq.: local solid waste management plans, O.C.G.A. § 12-6-31.1; litter control, O.C.G.A.
§ 16-7-40 et seq.



ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL

Secs. 30-1—30-18. - Reserved.

ARTICLE II. - COLLECTION

Sec. 30-19. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Business trash means every waste accumulation of dust, paper, paper cartons, cardboard
cartons, excelsior, rags, or other accumulations, other than garbage or household trash, which are
usually attendant to the operation of stores, offices, and similar businesses.

Commercial establishment means any hotel, motel, restaurant, food store, hospital, school,
church, business or any nonresidential establishment at which garbage or trash may be generated.

Exposed materials and equipment means any accumulation of materials, including waste
building materials, new building materials not associated with ongoing building projects,
building materials other than those stored in authorized outdoor storage yards, and similar
materials; and any accumulation of used or new equipment, such as refrigerators or other
appliances, plumbing fixtures or equipment, generators, small commercial trailers, and similar
equipment, stored out of doors and exposed to view from any public street or right-of-way.

Foreign material means construction or building waste, and includes such materials as sand,
stone, brick, wood, concrete, metal, plaster, concrete or plaster block, paving, roofing, pipe,
shingles, lawn renovating debris, sod, dead sod, tree stumps, discarded furniture, large household
appliances such as stoves, refrigerators, air conditioners, washing machines, clothes dryers, water
heaters, mattresses and television sets.

Garbage means every waste accumulation of animal or vegetable matter which attends the
preparation, use, cooking processing, handling, or storage of meats, fish, fowl, fruits, vegetables,
or other matter which is subject to decomposition, decay, putrefaction, or the generation of
noxious or offensive gases or odors, or which during or after decay, may serve as breeding or
feeding material for flies, insects, or animals.

Household trash means every waste accumulation of paper, sweepings, dust, rags, bottles,
cans, diapers or other matter of any kind, other than garbage, which is usually attendant to
housekeeping.

Industrial waste means every waste accumulation of metal, metal products, minerals,
chemicals, rocks, concrete, asphalt tar, oil, grease, glass, crockery, rubber tires, bottles, cans,
lumber, ashes, sawdust, wastes from animal packing or slaughterhouses, or other materials
usually created by commercial enterprises, and industrial plants, but not garbage, household
trash, or business trash.

Living unit means any place of abode which is suitable for permanent or transient family or
individual residence use. Each such living unit shall be considered as single and separate for the
purposes of this article.



Multifamily units means all places of abode other than single-family residences.

Refuse means solid waste accumulations consisting of garbage, household trash, and
business trash.

Single-family residence means any single-family dwelling or living unit, and is
interchangeable with the term "household" and includes single-family condominium units.

Tree trimmings means every waste accumulation of tree branches, tree trunks, tree limbs,
parts of trees, bushes, or shrubs, greenleaf cuttings, fruit, or other vegetation.

Yard trash means every waste accumulation of lawn, grass, or shrubbery cuttings or
clippings and dry leaf rakings, free of dirt, rocks, large branches, and bulky or noncombustible
material.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-1, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-20. - Receptacles and containers—Required.

It shall be the duty of every person in possession, charge, or control of any place in or from
which business trash, foreign material, garbage, household trash, industrial waste, tree
trimmings, and yard trash is created, accumulated, or produced, to provide and at all times to
keep in a suitable place readily accessible to the city collection crews or private collection
agencies, adequate and suitable receptacles and containers capable of holding all such waste
materials which would ordinarily accumulate between the times of successive collections. The
owner of any multifamily units shall furnish or require tenants to furnish proper waste
receptacles and containers.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-2, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-21. - Receptacles and containers—Specifications.

(a)  General design, maintenance and condition. All receptacles and containers as required
under this article shall be of safe construction and design and shall be maintained in good
and serviceable condition. Any receptacles or containers which do not conform to the
provisions of this article or which have ragged or sharp edges or any other defects which are
reasonably liable to hamper or injure the person collecting the contents thereof or the public
generally shall be promptly replaced upon notice. All refuse containers are to be provided by
the customer and are to be maintained by the customer at the customer's expense. exeept-as-

noted-below—insubsection{e)-of thisseetion—

(b) Refuse containers say shall be of the following construction and materials:




Each single-family residence shall provide a maximum of two (2) approved refuse containers, ae-

more-thantwe-{(2)refuse-containers which shall be constructed of heavy plastic material- not to

exceed ninety-six (96) gallons total. and-shall-have nrotmore-than-thirty-twe-(32)-gallons. Each
container(s)-er-eans-shall be equipped with suitable handles, tight-fitting covers or lids with hand

grips and shall be watertight and animal resistant.

The City shall not be required to collect the contents of more than what can be held within the
total ninety-six-gallon (96) container(s) with the top lid(s) or cover(s) fully closed. Custemers-

In-ground containers existing at the adoption of this ordinance shall not be allowed to be used for
trash pickup after the effective date of October 1, 2023. Afier the effective date, only approved
refuse containers as defined within this ordinance shall be allowed.

¢e) Optional containers for multi-family units:

Each individual unit within a Mmulti-family units with a capacity of more than two living
units shall be allowed up to what is allowed for a single-family residence of this ordinance. As an
alternative, a single-master dumpster no larger than eight (8) cubic yards may be utilized for all
multi-family units as long as the dumpster is properly secured and screened. required-to-use-

These All containers utilized by multi-family units shall be located so as to be easily accessible
by the city's equlpment and shall be enclosed within a su1tab1e opaque fence or otherwise hldden

from view.
R

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-3, 12-2-1996; Ord. No. 97-7, § 1, 4-7-1997)
Sec. 30-22. — Pre-collection practices.

(a) Dangerous trash items. All dangerous trash items, and all waste material of an injurious
nature, such as broken glass, light bulbs, razor blades, sharp pieces of metal, fluorescent
tubes, television tubes, and the like shall be securely wrapped to prevent injury to the
collection crews.



(b)  Yard trash. The city will not collect yard trash; as defined by this ordinance and as part of
the garbage collection program.

(c) Tree trimmings. The city will not collect tree trunks, tree stumps, tree branches, or tree limbs
of any size as part of the garbage collection program.

(d) Foreign material and industrial waste. The city will not collect foreign material or industrial
waste as defined by this chapter, all of which must be properly disposed of by the owner or
person, firm, or corporation responsible therefor.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-4, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-23. - Accumulation for collection.

All accumulations of refuse and trash shall be contained in plastic bags, not over filled and
of a durable nature so as to not rip or tear and shall be stored or placed for collection in
accordance with the fellowing provisions of this ordinance. The City reserves the right to not
collect refuse or trash from customers whose bags are ripped or torn or whose bags rip or tear
during the action of refuse or trash collection by City personnel. Additionally, loose, scattered, or
unbagged refuse or trash shall be the responsibility of the tenant or property owner to clean up
immediately upon request by the city and to properly secure prior to the City picking up for
collection. Furthermore, loose, scattered, or unbagged refuse or trash shall be subject to Sec. 30-
36.

(1) Public streets and private property. No person shall place any accumulations of refuse
and trash in any street, alley, or other public place of travel, nor upon any private
property except the person's own property, except on the days when it is scheduled to be
collected. For customers selecting the standard service option, the placement for
collection shall be in the area not more than 20 feet from the street pavement and the
approved containers must be easily visible and conspicuous from the street.

(2)  Blockage of storm drains. No person shall place any refuse, trash, garbage cans, or
trash bags on, upon, or over any storm drain, or so close thereto as to be drawn by the
elements into such drain, which would result in or tend to cause a blockage of any part
of such storm drainage system.

(3)  Unauthorized accumulations. Any unauthorized accumulation of refuse, business
trash, foreign material, or industrial waste, on any lot, property, premises, public street,
alley, or other public place of travel is prohibited. In addition, any unauthorized
accumulation of exposed materials and equipment on any commercially-zoned property
is prohibited. Failure to remove and correct any such unauthorized accumulations of
refuse shall be deemed a violation of this article, and shall be subject to the penalties
described in section 30-36.



@ Waste building materials. Notwithstanding subsection (3) of this section, waste
building materials, defined as foreign material by this article, shall be permitted to be
stored for a period of up to 60 days at ongoing building sites under the following
conditions:

a. No such materials may be located within rights-of-way or on private property other
than that of the building site;

b. No material which could be moved by the elements, such as paper, rags, cloth, or
other fibers, shall be stored at the site for an unreasonable length of time; and

c. All waste building materials shall be removed and property disposed of when a
project has been completed.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-5, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-24. - Collection practices and services.

(a) The city shall provide refuse collection service to each business establishment, residence,
or living unit within the city's corporate limits which is occupied a part of each fiscal year. If
any structure shall have more than one family or business occupying it, the city shall provide
such service to each occupant of the structure. Except in the event of inclement weather or
other acts of God, each customer shall receive refuse pickup service not less than once a
week.

(b)  The schedule for refuse collection and the charges the city shall levy against each
customer shall be as determined from time to time by the city council and posted at city

hall. %%Wmmmm&m

W&HW%—%&GMWWIH the case of new

structures, a refuse collection charge shall be levied upon issuance of a certificate of
occupancy.

(c) No abeve—ground approved trash receptacles shall be placed for collection before 6:00 AM on
the day of collection. Approved beve-greund-receptacles shalleuld be placed for collection no
later than 8:00 AM on the day of collection to insure collection. All approved beve-greund
receptacles shall be removed from their positions adjacent to the street or sidewalk after the
contents have been emptied on that same day. It shall be unlawful for any person to damage,
displace, or otherwise interfere with refuse containers or their contents except the owner or upon
permission or at the request of the owner.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the city reserves the right to reject the collection of certain
specific categories of refuse, in accordance with mandatory state or county solid waste
regulations, or in accordance with any recycling program the city may adopt, including
materials such as cardboard, aluminum, glass, or plastics. Upon adequate notice to its
customers, the city may require such refuse to be separated from other refuse and/or
disposed of by the customer.



() The city shall provide standard collection service and premium collection service, one of

whlch shall be selected by the customerhth&eh&Fﬂes—speefﬁed—&H—as—éeseﬁbed—aﬂd—

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-6, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-25. - Special collections.

(a) Any property owner desmng spec1al bulk collections of tree trimmings and/or yard trash

may request a special collection, which shall be

scheduled through the office of the city clerk. If sufficient manpower and equipment is

available, city personnel are authorized to make such special collections, provided the

person making the request agrees to pay for the labor and equipment used at the rate
specified by the city council elesk.

(b) No collection shall be made from vacant lots, nor shall any large rocks, tree trunks, tree
stumps, tree limbs, or other heavy objects be collected by the city. No waste building
materials or lot clearings shall be collected from houses or other structures under
construction or recently completed.

(c) Material to be collected by special collections shall be placed in neat piles and so located
that such refuse can be easily loaded on trucks for disposal.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-7, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-26. - Construction material not city's responsibility.

The city shall not be responsible for the collecting or hauling of trash, discarded building
material, dirt, rock, plaster, lumber, metal, or other like materials originating from private
property preliminary to, during, or subsequent to the construction of new buildings, alterations,
or additions to existing buildings of whatsoever type. Such material shall be removed by the
owner of the property or by the contractor. No certificate of occupancy shall be issued until such
material has been removed by the owner or contractor.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-8, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-27. - Collection and disposal by commercial establishments, and private collectors.

(a) The actual producers of refuse or the owners of the premises upon which refuse is
accumulated who desire personally to collect and dispose of such refuse, persons who desire
to dispose of waste material not included in the definition of refuse, or private collectors of
refuse from within the city or outside of the city who desire to haul over the streets of the
city shall use a watertight vehicle provided with a tight cover and so operated as to prevent
offensive odors escaping therefrom and refuse from being dropped, blown, or spilled.

(b)  The city shall have the authority to make such other reasonable regulations concerning
individual collection and disposal and relating to the hauling of refuse over city streets by
outside collectors or individuals as it shall find necessary.



(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-9, 12-2-1996)
Sec. 30-28. - Commercial establishments.

All commercial establishments shall store their refuse in containers or otherwise secure it so
as to eliminate wind-driven debris and unsightly litter in and about their establishments.
Approved methods of securing trash shall include containers, bins, fenced or walled trash storage
areas, or dump sites operated by the county.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-10, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-29. - Vacant lots.

It shall be unlawful for any person to throw any paper, trash, or debris, scrap building
material, or foreign material of any kind upon any vacant or unoccupied lot within the city.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-11, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-30. - Yard waste.

(a) Yard waste shall be considered special collections as referenced in Sec. 30-25 of this
ordinance and is defined as yard trash, debris, leaves, brush, tree limbs, cuttings and
trimmings and similar materials.

(b)  Yard waste shall not be collected separately—frem—heusehold as part of the garbage
collection program. Property owners or their representatives may request placerent-and

pickup of yard waste at-ethertimes-by contacting city hall and making speetal arrangements
with the city clerk for a scheduled pickup of yard waste. Request for special pickup of yard
waste shall be accompanied by a city work order and the property owner shall be charged a
fee as established by the C1ty of Sky Valley C1ty Counc1l e@Fé-l-Hﬂ-t-Bf—eﬂ—t—h-H@E@-&d—aﬂd“

f,»*eleu-p—elafé(.L Yard waste shall be placed for plckup W1th1n ﬁve feet of the roadway

(cd) Persons, firms or corporations performing tree removal or trimming services shall be
responsible for the prompt removal of any yard waste they produce.

(Ord. No. 98-10, §§ 1—4, 10-5-1998)

Sec. 30-31. - Days of collection.

The normal scheduled collection day shall be once per week on Monday. In the event that an
official city holiday disrupts trash collection, shalfall-en-a-Menday; trash service will
commence on Tuesday the next business day following the city holiday. e~wWhen inclement



weather or road conditions shall-prohibit collection on Monday, collection service will occur on
the first aext day in which weather or road conditions permit.

(Ord. No. 96-25, exh. A, 12-2-1996; Ord. No. 97-7, § 2, 4-7-1997)

Sec. 30-32. - Charges generally.

(a) Each residential account shall be charged a basic monthly collection charge as set by the
City of Sky Valley City Council.

(b)  Garbage shall be in arrecars under the same term as in effect for water bills and collection
services shall be discontinued at the same time as water service is discontinued and shall not
be resumed until the account is paid in full.

(Ord. No. 87-14, 9-8-1987)

Sec. 30-33. - Littering unlawful.

It shall be unlawful for any person to allow or throw any paper, trash, garbage, or debris
upon any street, alley, park, or other public or private property in the city. It shall further be
unlawful for any person to cast or throw, or cause to be cast or thrown, into any of the gutters,
drains, or sewers within the city, any garbage, tree or grass cuttings, or other substance
calculated to cause any obstruction or nuisance to the gutters, drains, or sewers.

Additionally, the City provides trash cans at strategic locations throughout the City such as
the mailboxes, pickleball court, Overlook, and waterfall etc. These trash cans are provided as a
courtesy for residents and guest to dispose of incidental trash ex. soda containers, junk mail,
potato chip bags, etc. and NOT bulk or bagged household or commercial garbage. Anyone
disposing of bulk or bagged garbage shall utilize the City compactor above the mailbox facility.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-12, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-34. - Burying refuse; polluting waters.

It is declared to be unlawful for any person to deposit on or to bury in or cause to be
deposited on or buried in any public square, street, alley, vacant or unoccupied lot, sidewalk,
parkway, or bank of any lake, stream, or waterway, any trash, rubbish, fruit peelings, debris,
refuse, garbage, brush, cans, boxes, oil, or vegetable or mineral matter, or to do any act that will
pollute or tend to pollute the waters of any lake, stream, or waterway.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-13, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-35. - Spilling material on streets.

It shall be unlawful for any person hauling any material whatsoever, whether refuse, trash,
fill, rock, sand, concrete, or whatever, to spill such material from the hauling vehicle onto the
streets of the city.



(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-14, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-36. - Penalties.

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

Any person violating any provision of this article shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.

The city shall also require that any unauthorized accumulation, as defined by section 30-
23(3), be removed within 36 10 business days' written notice to the property owner by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If such notice cannot be delivered by
the postal service, the city may, as an alternative, post a notice at the site of the unauthorized
accumulation stating the terms of removal. If such accumulation is not removed within the
notice period, then the city is authorized to remove or cause to be removed such
accumulation, entering in and upon private property if necessary, and shall assess the
property owner the cost of removing the accumulation. A second registered or certified mail
notice shall be sent to the property owner, stating that the accumulation has been removed
and that the cost shall be paid by the property owner to the city within 30 days of receipt. If
that assessment is not paid, then it shall become a lien on such piece of property. Notice of
such lien shall be filed and recorded in the real property lien records of the county, and when
so filed and recorded, said lien shall encumber the described real property and may be
foreclosed in the same manner as liens for taxes.

If approved abeve-greund-receptacles placed for collection are not removed from the street
area on the day of collection as required in section 30-24(c), the city is authorized to remove
or cause to be removed said containers and replace them on the property of the owner,
entering into and upon private property if necessary. A fee in the amount established by the
City of Sky Valley City Council shall inchapter+4-wl} be levied for each occurrence of
said failure and will be billed on the next scheduled billing.

If trash is placed for collection, either unlawfully or negligently, so as to allow it to be
scattered by wind or animals, the city is authorized to remove or cause to be removed such
scattered trash, entering into and upon private property if necessary. A fee in the amount
established by the City of Sky Valley City Council i#nrehapter+4-will be levied for each
occurrence and will be billed on the next scheduled billing.

(Ord. No. 96-25, § 1-15, 12-2-1996)

Sec. 30-37. — Effective date.

This ordinance shall take effect on October 1, 2023.
Section 30-21 shall take effect on December 1, 2023

Sec. 30-37.- Conflicting Ordinances.

City ordinance 92-15, 94-4, & 92-25 and all other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed.

Sec. 30-38- Severability clause.



Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph, or section of this ordinance or the application
thereof to any person, individual, business organization, partnership, circumstance be held
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction; such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions
of this ordinance.

APPROVED:

HOLLIE STEIL, MAYOR JIM CURTIS, COUNCILOR
BILL OLIVER, COUNCILOR
TONY ALLRED, COUNCILOR
TIM DARRAH, COUNCILOR
BRUCE TURNER, COUNCILOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

KAREN FLEMING DOUGLAS KIDD

CITY CLERK CITY ATTORNEY



First reading and introduction August , 2023

Second reading and adoption September , 2023



MEMORANDUM:

TO: SKY VALLEY MAYOR & CI

FROM: JASON STREETMAN
RE: PURCHASE OF PO,
DATE: August 8, 2023

Dear Mayor and council:

As we continue to recover from a Post-COVID world, supply chains, although improving- are still tight.
We see this everyday with our city purchases to include vehicle inventories; particularly vehicles
designed for first responder use.

| reached out to Brannen Ford in Unadilla, Parks Ford in Hendersonville, and Wade Ford in Atlanta- all
known for carrying fleet vehicles and Brennen Ford is the only dealer who had a unit in stock and provide

a quote.

With Officer Edwards soon to return, we find ourselves down one (1) vehicle. My recommendation is we
purchase this vehicle in preparation of his return and to allow advanced time for outfitting.

Thank you.

JAS



1- ogm__ Jason Streetman <citymanager@skyvalleyga.com>

FW: Jarid Ison (formally Wade Ford) - New Role at Brannen Motors

Jarid T. Ison <jarid@brannenmotors.com> Tue, Jul 11, 2023 at 3:41 PM
To: Jason Streetman <citymanager@skyvalleyga.com>

Jason,
We have white 3.3L V6 units on-ground, they are $44,800.00.

Best,

Jarid T. Ison

Brannen Motor Company (Ford/Chevy/Dodge)
Unadilla, GA 31091

Cell 706-502-9354

jarid@brannenmotors.com
www.brannenmotors.com

..... Original Message-----

From: "Rachael Hammer" <rhammer@brannenmotors.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 3:38pm

To: "Jarid T. Ison" <jarid@brannenmotors.com>

Subject: Fwd: Jarid Ison (formally Wade Ford) - New Role at Brannen Motors

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:

[Quoted text hidden]



1080 2nd Street

PO Box 746
RANNEN ©=.c. EHERGENCY VENICLES

= UNADILLA, BA &5 P: (478) 627-3221 F: (478) 627-9550

www.brannenmotorcompany.com I-!ﬂ”zﬂfﬂ‘ﬂ_ﬁ”ﬁ

SOLD TO: CITY OF SKYVALLEY, GA INVOICE / QUOTE # |
DATE: 08/08/2023
QTY. | DESC. YEAR MAKE/ NEW VIN PRICE SALES:
MODEL OR PER GOV/FLEET
] S (U UNIT |
1 | WHITE 2023 FORD NEW 1. 1FM5K8ABXPGA79656 @ $44,900.00 KELLEY/REED
| INTERCEPTOR ‘ - . ]
DEPARTMENT: CITY OF SKYVALLEY, GA EE'EC'EE’TF:QS PRICE DOES
PHONE CONTACT- JASON STREETMAN 828-332-2636 OPTIONAL EQUIP. DELlVERY
VEHICLE(S)-1- FORD INTERCEPTOR, WHITE IN COLOR W/ SPOTLIGHT, ACCESS.
NEW NEVER TITLED, NO MILES LISTED.
EMAIL- jamey@brannenmotors.com, jake@brannenmotors.com . S -
NO ADDED FEES
*18" H.D.STEEL WHEELS * 255/60R18 A/S BSW POLICE TIRES * CLASS I1l HITCH GPC APPLIED
RECEIVER * DUAL EXHAUST SYSTEM * DUAL POWER MIRRORS * FULL SIZE 18" PER UNIT
SPARE W/TPMS * HEADLAMPS - AUTO, LED LOW/HIGH INCLUDES FRONT Seev
HOUSING (W/ LED WIG-WAG) * KEY LOCKS (DR/PASS/LFTGT) * PRIVACY GLASS
2ND/3RD ROW *35/30/35 SPLIT VINYL REAR * A/C W/AUTOMATIC CLIMATE | | |CENSE AND TITLE .
CONTROL, DUAL ZONE * BLACK VINYL FLOOR COVERING *CERTIFIED NO TAX (GOV)
SPEEDOMETER * CLOTH BUCKET FRONT SEATS * CONSOLE MOUNTING PLATE * i —
ENGINE HOUR / IDLE METER * HTD SANITIZATION SOLUTION * PWR DR
SEAT/6-WAY/M LUMBAR * RED/WHITE TASK LIGHTING * SEATBACK
INTRUSION PLATES *TILT/TELESCOPING STEERING WHL W/ 4 CONFIGURABLE
LATCHING SWITCHES *AM/FM/MP3/BLUETOOTH & USB * COLUMN MOUNTED TOTAL
SHIFTER * ENGINE OIL COOLER * FORD TELEMATICS™ * FULL-TIME ALL WHEEL ———— 544,900.00

DRIVE SYSTEM * HEAVY DUTY SUSPENSICN * HEAVY-DUTY 80-AMP BATTERY *
INTERIOR TRUNK/LIFTGATE RELEASE * POLICE BRAKES: 4 WHL DISC W/ ABS &
TRACTION CONTROL * POWER STEERING W/EPAS REAR VIEW CAMERA
*TRANSMISSION OIL COOLER *TRANSMISSION-10-SPEED AUTO * 75 MPH
REAR-CRASH TESTED * ADVANCETRAC™ WITH RSC * AIRBAGS - FRONT AND
SIDE * AIRBAGS - SAFETY CANOPY * SOS POST CRASH ALERT SYS * TIRE
PRESSURE MONITOR SYS

PLEASE FEEL FREE TO
CALL OR EMAIL WITH
ANY QUESTIONS OR
CONCERNS-

JAKE KELLEY

GOV/ FLEET

BRANNEN MOTORS
229-322-9702
JAKE@BRANNENMOTORS.COM



CHI-004557

ford.com

STANDARD EQUIPMENT

EXTERIOR

« 18" H.D.STEEL WHEELS

« 265/60A18 AUS BSW
POLICE TIRES

» CLASS Il HITCH RECEIVER

» DUAL EXHAUST SYSTEM

« DUAL POWER MIRRORS

« FULL SIZE 18" SPARE W/TPMS

» HEADLAMPS - AUTO, LED
LOW/HIGH INCLUDES FRONT
HOUSING (W/ LED WIG-WAG)

« KEY LOCKS (DR/PASS/LFTGT)

» PRIVACY GLASS 2ND/3RD ROW

GA 9-NORMA 004557,

PAl81

VEHICLE DESCRIPTION

POLICE INTERCEPTOR

2023 UTILITY AWD
119" WHEELBASE

3.3L TI-VCT V6 FFV ENGINE
10-SPEED AUTO TRANSMISSION

INTERIOR

» 35/30/35 SPLIT VINYL REAR

» A/C W/AUTOMATIC CLIMATE
CONTROL, DUAL ZONE

» BLACK VINYL FLOOR COVERING

« CERTIFIED SPEEDOMETER

« CLOTH BUCKET FRONT SEATS

« CONSOLE MOUNTING PLATE

« ENGINE HOUR / IDLE METER

» HTD SANITIZATION SOLUTION

» PWR DR SEAT/6-WAY/M LUMBAR

* RED/WHITE TASK LIGHTING

+ SEATBACK INTRUSION PLATES

« TILT/TELESCOPING STEERING
WHL W/ 4 CONFIGURABLE
LATCHING SWITCHES

12487

% |
120230125 4396 |

Pe A35167

EXTERIOR
OXFORD WHITE
INTERIOR
EBONY CLOTH FRT/VINYL REAR

« UNIVERSAL TOP TRAY

EUNCTIONAL

* AM/FM/MP3/BLUETOOTH & USB

+ COLUMN MOUNTED SHIFTER

+ ENGINE OIL COOLER

« FORD TELEMATICS™

¢ FULL-TIME ALL WHEEL DRIVE
SYSTEM

» HEAVY DUTY SUSPENSION

« HEAVY-DUTY 80-AMP BATTERY

« INTERIOR TRUNK/LIFTGATE
RELEASE

« POLICE BRAKES: 4 WHL DISC
W/ ABS & TRACTION CONTROL

» POWER STEERING W/EPAS

« REAR VIEW CAMERA

« TRANSMISSION OIL COOLER

« TRANSMISSION-10-SPEED AUTO
SAFETY/SECURITY

« 75 MPH REAR-CRASH TESTED

* ADVANCETRAC™ WITH RSC®

« AIRBAGS - FRONT AND SIDE

« AIRBAGS - SAFETY CANOPY

+ SOS POST CRASH ALERT SYS

+ TIRE PRESSURE MONITOR SYS

WARRANTY

« 3 YR/36K MILE BUMPER-TO-
BUMPER WARRANTY

* 5 YR/100K MILE POWERTRAIN
CARE EXTENDED SERVICE PLAN
(ZERO DEDUCTIBLE)

INCLUDED ON THIS VEHICLE
EQUIPMENT GROUP 500A

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT/OTHER
1010-046P05/27/22GA

.AM/FM STEREO

3.3L TI-VCT V6 FFV ENGINE
10-SPEED AUTO TRANSMISSION
AUX CLIMATE CONTROL

50 STATE EMISSIONS

DRIVER SIDE LED SPOT LAMP
KEYLESS ENTRY - 4 FOBS

4G LTE WI-FI HOTSPOT CREDIT
FLEX-FUEL CAPABILITY

FRONT LICENSE PLATE BRACKET

{MSRP)

- 2,830.00
NO CHARGE
610.00

NO CHARGE
385.00
340.00

- 20,00

NO CHARGE

{MSRP)
ERICE INFORMATION
BASE PRICE
TOTAL OPTIONS/OTHER

$47,165.00

- 1,505.00
TOTAL VEHICLE & OPTIONS/OTHER -
DESTINATION & DELIVERY

45,860.00
1,495.00

RAMP ONE

CHO02

RAMP TWO

TOTAL MSRP  $47,155.00

CONVOY

ITEM &

Whether you decide to lease or finance your
@D yehicle, you'll find the choices that are right
Ford Credit for you. See your dealer for detalls of visit

pLRALD e www.ford.com/finance,

owwm.wm WM

PA Fuel Economy and Environment

Fuel Economy Standaid SUVs range fions 14 to 102

combined cily/hwy city highway gallons per 100 miles

Driving Range

F Eshanol (E85E 305 miles o

MPG. The best veh 5 132 MPGe
2— 10 Values are based on gasoline and do not
reflect performance and ratings based on
ES5
17 23 5.3

imskeass PGA35167 NB

E8S Flexible-Fuel Vehicle

Gasoline-Ethanol (E85)

You w—um—._n_

$3,750

more in fuel costs
over 5 years
compared to the

g

FL1:

average new vehicle.

463 grams CO2 per m le. The best
luel also creale . learn more 3l I

s O grams per mi

Actual ::E:- will vary for many .ou-ona .=a“=n_=m driving conditions and how you n:‘om.& maintain
mars. Cost astimatas

he average new ve ets 28 MPG and costs $8.000 to fuel over 5
1 15,000 miles por yoar m 5$2.85 por gallon. T
gasoling gallon equivalent. Vehlcle emizsions are

fueleconomygov

Calculate personalized estimates and campare vehicles

GOVERNMENT 5-STAR SAFETY RATINGS
Overall Vehicle Score Not Rated

Based on the comit ratings of fron ollover.
Should ONLY bwt compared to olher vehicles of similar size and we:ghl

a dual fusled automaobi

Frontal Driver
Crash Passenger

Based on Lhe nisk of injury in a frontal impact
Should ONLY be compared 1a olher vehicles of similar size and weight

Side Front seat W ok Kk k&
Crash Rear seat * K Kk Kk %

Based on the nisk ol injury in a side impacl

Not Rated
Not Rated

Rollover

significant cause of climate change and smog.

1.0V,

Smartphone
QR Code~

Based on he risk of rollover in a it
Star ratings range from 1 to 5 stars (% % % % 4 ), with 5 being the highest.

Source: National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA).
www.safercar.gov or 1-888-327-4236

The modem Is active and sending
vehicle data (e.g., diagnostics) to
Ford. See in-vehicle settings for
connectivity options.

FORD PROTECT

Centinued Service Plan

2>

Inslst on Ford Protect! The only extended service
plan fully backed by Ford and hanared at every Ford
dealership in the U.S., Canada and Mexico. See your
Ford dealer or visit www.FordOwner.com.

This label Is affixed pursuant to the Federal Automobite
Informatlon Dlsclosure Act. Gasallne, Licenss, and Tltle Fees,
State and Local taxes are not Included, Deater Installed
options or accessorles are not Included unless listed above,

SPECIAL ORDER
PA181N RB2X 315 004557 0118 23

07/11/2023

9 WARNING: Operating, servicing and maintaining a passenger vehicle. pickup truck,
vehicle can expose you fo chemicals including engine exhaust, carbon monoxide,

vehicle in a weil-ven
For more information 4o 1o www.PB5Warnings.ca.gov/passenger-vehicle.

lead, which are known to the State of California o cause cancer and birlh defects or other __mcaacn_._m harm
mize exposure, avoid breathing exhausl, do not idie the engine excepl as necessary, service your
ed area and weal dloves or wash your hands [requently when senvicing your vehicle.
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